AGENDA
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, JULY 01, 2024
7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET

Call to Order by the Mayor

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of Minutes

1

Approval of the minutes of the Regular City Council meeting of June 17, 2024.

Agenda Revisions

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City

business.)

Staff Updates

Special Order of Business

2.

|0

Public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the Katoski Drive Box
Culvert Replacement Project, and to authorize acquisition of private property for said project.

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 06/25/2024)
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk.

c¢) Staff comments.

d) Public comments.

e) Resolution approving a public improvement project for the Katoski Drive Box Culvert Replacement
Project, and to authorize acquisition of private property for said project.

Public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the South Main Street
Sanitary Sewer Extension Project, and to authorize acquisition of private property for said project.

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 06/25/2024)
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk.

c¢) Staff comments.

d) Public comments.

e) Resolution approving a public improvement project for the South Main Street Sanitary Sewer
Extension Project, and to authorize acquisition of private property for said project.

Old Business

Page 1 of 4




B

|1

|©

Pass Ordinance #3068, amending Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances relative to
impoundment of dogs, cats or poultry running at-large, redemption of impounded animals, permitting
dog, cat or poultry to run at-large, disposition of impoundment animals and notice of destruction of
animal; appeal, upon its third & final consideration.

Pass Ordinance #3069, amending the Zoning Map by removing real estate located at 2216 Main
Street and 127 East 23rd Street, Commercial District, upon its second consideration.

Pass Ordinance #3070, amending Chapter 10, Garbage and Refuse, of the Code of Ordinances
relative to containers; placement for collection; penalty of violation and service charges —
established, upon its second consideration.

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.)

7

|

|©

Receive and file the City Council Committee of the Whole minutes of June 17, 2024 relative to the
following item:
a) Parking Study Report.

Receive and file the following resignations of members from Boards and Commissions:
a) Jason Droste, Human Rights Commission.
b) Brad Leeper, Planning & Zoning Commission.

Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses:

a) Chuck E. Cheese's, 5911 University Avenue, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal.

b) Applebee's Neighborhood Grill & Bar, 6301 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal.
¢) Carlos O'Kelly's Mexican Café, 6507 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal.

d) Cooper’s Taproom, 2002 College Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal.

e) Le Petit, 119 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal.

f Montage, 222-224 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service — renewal.

g) Texas Roadhouse, 5715 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal.

h) Carlos O'Kelly's Mexican Café, 6507 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol — change in
ownership.

i) Jorgensen Plaza (Table 1912, Diamond Event Center and Gilmore’s Pub), 5307 Caraway Lane,
Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (July 25,
2024 and August 29, 2024)

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered

separately.)

10.

11

Resolution Calendar with items considered separately.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of Cedar Falls
Community School District relative to FY2025 Cedar Falls Health Trust Services Funding.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of NAMI Black Hawk
County relative to FY2025 Cedar Falls Health Trust Services Funding.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of Family YMCA of
Black Hawk County relative to FY2025 Cedar Falls Health Trust Services Funding.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with the University of Northern
lowa relative to a City Employee Climate Survey.

Resolution approving and adopting an Amendment to the City's Health Insurance Benefits and
Summary Plan Document relative to continuation of health coverage for dependents of eligible peace
officers and firefighters.

Resolution approving and adopting amendments to CFD 2251: Personnel Policy — Insurance
Benefits.

Page 2 of 4




Ordinances

27.

Resolution approving and adopting an Amendment to the City's Health Insurance Benefits and
Summary Plan Document relative to continuation of existing health coverage for one additional
month.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement for asbestos
removal and disposal services with All Star Environmental relative to property located at 523 West
1st Street.

Resolution approving an amendment to the PC-2, Planned Commercial Zoning District Master Plan
and site plan for construction of a practice soccer field to be located at 924 West Viking Road.

Resolution approving the minor plat of Geisler Minor Subdivision Plat No. 1, replat of Lots 7, 8, & 9,
Normal Addition.

Resolution approving a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District design review for two new
duplexes located at 2511 Franklin Street. (Contingent upon approval of previous item)

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a License Agreement with Aureon Network
Services relative to installing a fiber optic telecommunications system within the public right-of-way of
West 27th Street.

Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a License Agreement with Aureon Network
Services relative to installing a fiber optic telecommunications system within the public right-of-way of
Orchard Drive.

Resolution approving and accepting three Warranty Deeds in conjunction with the North Cedar
Heights Area Reconstruction Project.

Resolution setting July 15 as the date of public hearing on the proposed conveyance of certain
vacated alley right-of-way abutting 1307 Longview Street.

Resolution setting July 15 as the date of public hearing on the FFY2024-2028 Consortium 5-Year
Consolidated Plan for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) & HOME Programs.

Pass an ordinance, amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to
controller/city treasurer, information systems manager, city clerk, appointment, powers and duties of
city attorney, appointment, powers and duties of human resources manager, planning and
community services manager, manager, building official, manager of operations and maintenance,
city engineer, and water reclamation manager, upon its first consideration.

Pass an ordinance, amending Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances relative
to public events on city property, upon its first consideration.

Pass an ordinance, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances
relative to parking prohibited on specific streets, upon its first consideration.

Pass an ordinance, amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to residence
district, upon its first consideration.

Allow Bills and Claims

31

Allow Bills and Claims for July 1, 2024.

Council Updates and Announcements

Council Referrals

Executive Session

Page 3 of 4




32. Executive Session to discuss Property Acquisition per lowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the
purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could be reasonably
expected to increase the price the governmental body would have to pay for that property or reduce
the price the governmental body would receive for that property; and to discuss Information
contained in records in the custody of a governmental body that are confidential records pursuant to
lowa Code Section 22.7(50).

Adjournment

Page 4 of 4




54822 -

54823 -

54824 -

54825 -

54826 -

54827 -

CITY HALL
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JUNE 17, 2024
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL
MAYOR DANIEL LAUDICK PRESIDING

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, met in Regular Session,
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, Latta, Kruse,
Hawbaker, Crisman (via Zoom), Dunn. Absent: Ganfield. Mayor Laudick led the
Pledge of Allegiance.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Latta that the minutes of the Regular
Meeting of June 3, 2024 be approved as presented and ordered of record.
Motion carried unanimously.

Carrie Sherwood, Dike, commented on public forum time extension and concern
with the delay in discussion and action on retroactive policy.

Rick Sharp, Cedar Falls, thanked staff for their quick response to concerns about
yard waste. Sharp expressed concern regarding dates and hours of allowed
fireworks use and asked about enforcement. Police Chief Howard, Mayor
Laudick, and Councilmember Schultz commented.

Mayor Laudick announced the City Fireworks show at the UNI Dome on June 27,
2024 at 9:30/9:45 PM.

Mayor announced that this was the time and place for a hearing on a complaint
issued to MT Tanks, LLC, d/b/a Panther Travel Center, 1525 West Ridgeway
Avenue, for a first tobacco violation. Assistant City Attorney McMahon provided
background on the tobacco complaint. There being no one else present wishing
to speak, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of
business.

It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Latta to approve and authorize
execution of an Order Assessing Penalty relative to a First Tobacco Violation
regarding MT Tanks, LLC, d/b/a Panther Travel Center, 1525 West Ridgeway
Avenue. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers
voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman, and Dunn. Nay: None.
Motion carried.

Mayor Laudick announced that in accordance with the public notice of June 11,
2024, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed rezoning
from M-1, Light Industrial District, to C-2, Commercial District, of properties
located at 2216 main Street and 127 East 23" Street. It was then moved by
Kruse and seconded by Dunn that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously.

The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the
project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications on file,
the Mayor then called for oral comments. Community Services Manager Howard
provided an update on the property. There being no one else present wishing to
speak about the property, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to

Iltem 1.




54828 -

54829 -

54830 -

54831 -

54832 -

54833 -

the next order of business.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Hawbaker that Ordinance #3069,
amending the Zoning Map by removing real estate located at 2216 Main Street
and 127 East 23" Street, Commercial District, be passed upon its first
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the
guestion on the motion, and upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman, Dunn.
Nay: None. Motion carried.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Hawbaker that Ordinance #3059,
amending the Zoning Map by removing real estate located at 2300 Main Street
from M-1, Light Industrial District, to C-2, Commercial District, be passed upon its
third and final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman,
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3059
duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Schultz that Ordinance #3060, vacating
certain public right-of-way of an alley between Longview Street and Cedar Street,
be passed upon its third and final consideration. Following due consideration by
the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll,
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse,
Hawbaker, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared
Ordinance #3060 duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Latta and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #3061, amending
Chapter 1, General Provisions, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the general
penalty for simple misdemeanors, be passed upon its third and final
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the
guestion on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman, Dunn.
Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3061 duly
passed and adopted.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Hawbaker that Ordinance #3062,
amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to
approval of bills and claims against city, be passed upon its third and final
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the
guestion on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman, Dunn.
Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3062 duly
passed and adopted.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Hawbaker that Ordinance #3063,
amending Chapter 5, Alcoholic and Malt Beverages, of the Code of Ordinances
relative to location and operation — generally and Chapter 17, Parks and
Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances relative to noxious weeds prohibited;
exceptions, be passed upon its third and final consideration. Following due
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta,

Iltem 1.




54834 -

54835 -

54836 -

54837 -

54838 -

54839 -

-3-

Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then
declared Ordinance #3063 duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Schultz that Ordinance #3064,
amending Chapter 10, Garbage and Refuse, of the Code of Ordinances relative
to the use of city collection service, be passed upon its third and final
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the
guestion on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman, Dunn.
Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3064 duly
passed and adopted.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Hawbaker that Ordinance #3065,
amending Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code of
Ordinances relative to disorderly conduct - generally, be passed upon its third
and final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman, Dunn.
Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3065 duly
passed and adopted.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Hawbaker that Ordinance #3066,
amending Chapter 18, Planning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to powers
and duties, be passed upon its third and final consideration. Following due
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta,
Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then
declared Ordinance #3066 duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Hawbaker that Ordinance #3067,
amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances
relative to general passing, be passed upon its third and final consideration.
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.
Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion
carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3067 duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Dunn that Ordinance #3068, amending
Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances relative to impoundment of dogs,
cats or poultry running at-large, redemption of impounded animals, permitting
dog, cat, or poultry to run at-large, disposition of impoundment animals and
destruction of animal; appeal, be passed upon its second consideration.
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.
Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion
carried.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Hawbaker that the following items on
the Consent Calendar be received, filed, and approved:

Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of June 3, 2024 relative

Iltem 1.




to the following item:
a) Residential Incentives & Draft Policy.

Receive and file the City Council Committee of the Whole minutes of June 3,
2024 relative to the following item:
a) Grow Cedar Valley Update.

Approve the following recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment
of members to Boards and Commissions:

a) Crystal Waltz, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2027.

b) Tyler Ingham, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2027.

c) Madeleine Seymour, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2027.
d) Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Metropolitan Transit Board, term ending 6/30/2027.

Receive and file communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to the
following certified lists:

a) Administrative Supervisor.

b) Public Safety Officer.

Approve a request by Cedar Falls Utilities for a temporary variance from Section
15-83 of the Code of Ordinances, Prohibited noises generally, to allow painting of
a water tower to occur on Sundays.

Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:
a) B&B West, 3105 Hudson Road.

b) Bani’s, 2128 College Street.

c) Buzz Smoke & Vapor, 2125 College Street, Suite A.

d) Cloud 9 Glass & Novelty, 2125 College Street, Suite C.
e) Dollar General #14412, 2921 Center Street.

f) Dollar General #21239, 1922 Valley Park Drive.

g) Fleet Farm Fuel, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue.

h) Great Wall Chinese Restaurant, 2125 College Street, Suite D.
i) Kwik Spirits #561, 4116 University Avenue, Suite 104-105.
J) Kwik Star #490, 7500 Nordic Drive.

k) Kwik Star #726, 2019 College Street.

[) Kwik Star #934, 4515 Coneflower Parkway.

m) Mini Mart, 1420 West 1st Street.

n) Pheasant Ridge Golf Course, 3205 West 12th Street.

0) Posh Smoke and Vape, 6322 University Avenue, Suite L.
p) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street.

g) Prime Vapor and Tobacco, 2323 Main Street.

r) Suds, 2223 1/2 College Street.

s) Thunder Ridge Ampride, 2425 Whitetail Drive.

t) Walgreens #10557, 2509 Whitetail Drive.

Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses:

a) Dollar General Store, 2921 Center Street, Class B retail alcohol - renewal.

b) King Star, 2228 Lincoln Street, Class B retail alcohol - renewal.

c) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street, Class B retail alcohol - renewal.

d) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive, Class B retail alcohol - renewal.

e) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class F retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal.
f) Cindy Lou’s BBQ, 6607 University Ave, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service

Iltem 1.




54840 -

- renewal.

g) George’s Local, 108 E. 4th Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service -
renewal.

h) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue, Class E retail alcohol - renewal.
i) Texas Roadhouse, 5715 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - change in
ownership.

Motion carried unanimously.

It was moved by Latta and seconded by Hawbaker that the following resolutions
be introduced and adopted:

Resolution #23,662 approving and adopting the City’s FY2025 Appropriations
Resolution.

Resolution #23,663 approving and adopting the City’s FY2025 Payroll
Resolution.

Resolution #23,664 approving and adopting the City’s FY2025 Fee Schedule.

Resolution #23,665 reallocating American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Allocation
relative to providing continued relief from the public health and economic impacts
of the COVID-19 public health emergency.

Resolution #23,666 approving and authorizing execution of a Client Authorization
to Bind Coverage relative to renewal of the City’s Public Entity Insurance for
FY2025.

Resolution #23,667 approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the
purchase of Glock 26 Pistols with Trijicon SRO2 Optic firearms for the Public
Safety Department.

Resolution #23,668 approving and accepting Bulletproof Vest Partnership (BVP)
grant funding from the U.S. Department of Justice relative to replacement of
police ballistic vests.

Resolution #23,669 approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for towing,
wrecker, and storage services with Rasmusson Towing.

Resolution #23,670 approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for towing,
wrecker, and storage services with Valley Wide Towing & Recovery Inc.

Resolution #23,671 approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with
Thad Peck relative to providing a Breathwork Workshop at the Recreation
Center.

Resolution #23,672 approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with
Eden+ Nonprofit Fundraising Consulting relative to the Hearst 2.0 Fundraising
Feasibility Study.

Resolution #23,673 approving and authorizing execution of an lowa Economic
Development Authority Certified Local Government (CLG) Program Grant
Agreement with the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) relative to the

Iltem 1.




54841 -

54842 -

Overman Park Neighborhood.

Resolution #23,674 approving and accepting Four Warranty Deeds in
conjunction with the North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project.

Resolution #23,675 approving and authorizing execution of a Professional
Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC relative to the
Highway 57 & Union Road Intersection Improvements Project.

Resolution #23,676 approving and authorizing execution of a Predesign
Agreement for Primary Road Project with the lowa Department of Transportation
(IDOT) relative to the Highway 57 & Union Road Intersection Improvements
Project.

Resolution #23,677 approving and accepting the contract and bond of Blacktop
Service Co. for the 2024 Seal Coat Project.

Resolution #23,678 approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental
Agreement No. 4 to the Professional Service Agreement with AECOM Technical
Services, Inc. for design services relative to the North Cedar Heights Area
Reconstruction Project — Phase III.

Resolution #23,679 setting July 1, 2024 as the date of public hearing on a
proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the Katoski Drive Box
Culvert Replacement Project, and to authorize acquisition of private property for
said project.

Resolution #23,680 setting July 1, 2024 as the date of public hearing on a
proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the South Main Street
Sanitary Sewer Extension Project, and to authorize acquisition of private property
for said project.

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.
Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #23,662 through #23,680 duly
passed and adopted.

It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Latta that Resolution #23,681,
approving and authorizing execution of an Employment Agreement with the City
Administrator, be adopted. Following comments and responses by Mayor
Laudick and Councilmember Schultz, it was moved by Kruse to move the
discussion to a future Executive Session. Following comments by Mayor, City
Attorney Rogers, and Councilmember Kruse the motion failed for lack of a
second. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers
voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Hawbaker, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: Kruse. Motion
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,681 duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Hawbaker that Resolution #23,682,
approving and authorizing execution of an Administrative Services Agreement
with Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of lowa, Wellmark Health Plan of
lowa, Inc., relative to the City’'s FY2025 Employee Health Plan, be adopted.

Iltem 1.

10




54843 -

54844 -

54845 -

54846 -

54847 -

-7-

Following comments by Rick Sharp, Cedar Falls, and responses by the Mayor,
the Mayor put the question on the motion, and upon call of the roll, the following
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman,
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,682
duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Hawbaker that Resolution #23,683,
approving a Stop Loss Policy with Wellmark, Inc. relative to the City’s FY2025
Employee Health Plan, be adopted. Following due consideration by the Council,
the Mayor put the question on the motion, and upon call of the roll, the following
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman,
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,683
duly passed and adopted.

It was moved by Latta and seconded by Hawbaker that Resolution #23,684,
approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of fencing
relative to the Orchard hill pickleball Court Expansion project, be approved.
Following comments by Councilmembers Kruse, Schultz, Dunn, Hawbaker and
Rick Sharp, Cedar Falls, and responses by Community Development Director
Sheetz, Mayor Laudick, and City Administrator Gaines, the Mayor put the
guestion on the motion, and upon call of the roll, the following named
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman, Dunn.
Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,684 duly
passed and adopted.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Dunn that Ordinance #3070, amending
Chapter 10, Garbage and Refuse, of the Code of Ordinances relative to
containers; placement for collection; penalty of violation and service charges -
established, be passed upon its first consideration. Following due consideration
by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion, and upon call of the
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse,
Hawbaker, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Dunn that the bills and claims of June
17, 2024 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers
voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion
carried.

It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Latta that the meeting be adjourned at
7:42 P.M. Motion carried unanimously.

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk

Iltem 1.

11




DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613
Phone: 319-268-5161
Fax: 319-268-5197

Item 2.

www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council
FROM: David Wicke, PE — City Engineer
DATE: June 21, 2024

SUBJECT: Katoski Drive Box Culvert Replacement Project
City Project Number: BR-265-3261
Public Hearing for Easement Acquisition

The City of Cedar Falls is planning the replacement of the Katoski Bridge over Branch
Black Hawk Creek. This bridge is located on Katoski Drive approximately 1500 feet east
of Cedar Heights Drive. Included in the project will be replacing the existing I-beam bridge
with a new concrete double box culvert. Along with the box culverts will be a new paving
asphalt paving surface on the deck of the of the new box culvert. Additionally, new rip rap
will be placed along the aprons on the new culvert and restoration of the area.

Plans for the project show the need for easement acquisitions from approximately two
(2) properties.

lowa law requires that the City Council hold a public hearing to authorize proceeding with
the project, including the purchase of right-of-way and easements. The public hearing
offers an opportunity for the public, especially those from whom the fee title and easement
acquisition will be purchased, to comment on the project.

xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works

Engineering Division

12




Parcel #891332151003 Parcel #891332176001
Marco Properties LLC Marco Properties LLC

KATOSKI DRIVE

66'-0" EXISTING ROW

Permanent Easement Summary

Parcel #891332151003 = 0.01 acres
Parcel #891332176001 = 0.11 acres

Parcel #891332151003 Parcel #891332176001
Temporary Easement Summary Marco Properties LLC Marco Properties LLC
Parcel #891332151003 = 0.02 acres Approximate Lot Line
Parcel #891332176001 = 0.22 acres

Right of Way Legend

Property Lines
[ Temporary Easement
(1 Permanent Easement

KATOSKI DRIVE BRIDGE REPLACEMENT o 2 "
OVER BRANCH BLACK HAWK CREEK

DRAWN: S. DILLAVOU SCALE: 1"= 40'

seeos s || CITY PROJECT NO.: BR-265-3261

.
O
°
)
I3
js3
(%2}
o
g
Q
g
o
N
~
o
(5]
<
o
o
o
g
2
2
<
X
w
k3]
g
Ql
E
©
<4
£
o
g
:
>
Ky
[=3
0
o
g
[=)
<
o
=
:
[
£
@
o
g
[=
(7]
o
(]
O
2
o
[
=
o
=
:
L
5]
X
¢
o
<
£
©
w
5}
b=
Q
e
i)
3
z
2
[}
o
S
E
z
Q
£
3
o
o
[=}
8
S
<
2
2
<
2
o
=
£
Q
<
3|
@
b
:
@
<
2
I
<
2
o
5
g
)
2
[s1
=
<
o
=
©
0
c
<
o
o
oN
8
=9
o
8
w

[ © 2024 Microsoft Corporation © 2024 Maxar ©CNES (2024) Dictribution Airbus DS |




DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613
Phone: 319-268-5161
Fax: 319-268-5197

Item 3.

www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council
FROM: David Wicke, PE — City Engineer
DATE: June 21, 2024

SUBJECT: South Main Sanitary Sewer Extension
City Project Number: SA-173-3332
Public Hearing for Easement Acquisition

The City of Cedar Falls is planning the reconstruction of the South Main Street Sanitary
Sewer Extension Project from Bergstrom Boulevard to Greenhill Road. Included in the
project will be the extension of the existing sanitary sewer to provide service to the
properties located along the west side of Main Street from Bergstrom Boulevard to
Greenhill Road. The new sewer will be an 8-inch sewer rated for sanitary service.

Plans for the project show the need for easement acquisitions from approximately nine
(9) properties.

lowa law requires that the City Council hold a public hearing to authorize proceeding with
the project, including the purchase of right-of-way and easements. The public hearing
offers an opportunity for the public, especially those from whom the fee title and easement
acquisition will be purchased, to comment on the project.

xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works

Engineering Division

14




South Main Street
Sanitary Sewer Extension

f Cedar Falls, lowa
May, 2024

"

R N T

i e

Strip Map

S

'."TN.“-.; ™ 3

L TS
3
5 i)
s e

o—'h-;‘ m_.

>IM & ANITA NUH |
4 JAMESDRIVE =% s S ol RGP M b |
}f4m6JAMES[H“VEf 20, ; AT | s S | peat e S 3 ':;::;LE_J & 3 _“i,ﬁr f'i:' S | 'i;IH  : = = : ¢;m%{?*;. ':_ TS FRaT S e S i iy ‘

.-_l \‘.-_.f. : ’
K1 Ry At
i L W3

”

. o

54 3 .l e _;'_»;, T Lo - _' "
e A — REINSTALL
AINEgsatly /77 SN2 AL R
S MANHOLE &

,:&' b .
a. : P e
B

~ CONTRACTOR
 STAGING AREA

TN “3$f—____——___—f—
CONSTRUCTION y MG SR
ENTRANCE

EW TILKES &
: ANDREW TILKES

S MAIN ST e
A 4309 S MAIN ST |

SCOTT& SHARI . SORENSENKG D

BUTTERFIELD) - ~ 4103 JAMESDRIVE

b

TEMP EASEMENT —

q. ! Fo : f ¢
CONNECT TO - o, e R
EXISTING MAIN ~_—— 8"SANITARY MAIN

R

- t smTAﬁv SE?\;IC?/* - EEEERN EASEMENT . @@ P L AT &g ¥ |
i | Ve e e F | BRANDON &EMILY OLSON B 3,20

| | - M R b i 4003 S MAIN STREET - B e T TEMP EASEMENT

' % MP EASEMENT | N

o0 T
.- 3 " - ]
: .;:.-:{ N -
{ i - .
..v". .“’

PERM EASEME DA i Gy % ek e
b= prT, _. | REINSTALL-— e
| 0 PERMEASEMENT - .~ MANHOLE— = gl W B S SERENTT SR T R e A T NG P
W . 38% 7~ EXISTING 8"

Tl R 3 : -
i AR R S : . s MUY Rl -
J 2 5 ' . - : ..- .; I-_. _'_. ¥ %’.‘ . *_ e ot . - \ . | 4 % BT .. 3 |
o, i ¢ Lhe s oMk 5 Sy o . ) N . ™ 2 b i%% = “t—. r’ ' o . 2 .
% | | RS 32 Al 55 |
) _\_c _.. ._ ‘". k » ;._;. I,I‘ y . 4 | ke -. # . . .. ¥ ‘- _'_‘I'-‘. 2 ‘“‘ . | - .‘- i & .l-. g "'_- -‘...I 4 ;. P _. Y - . -'_ Y -I' 7 e g A 3 gy . P« e i d
: TR oo, 8

d-.")

= el
:

TEMP EASEMENT = U = | ; SRR,
: T = _.-, .. f.,.l._ 7 o - : ) -. & i j - . 4 ] . -‘H\' il _ R < : ; £ =
by J . 5 S . o y ’ j- -. | | ’I,_l... | .. _‘. ', . | ¥ > _ “ » | P r A 7 [ 2 o .. X 1§73 } 1 o R | ‘ |
‘I‘- . [ . i . ! '-‘_ -, .‘_:--' A o A . AN 78 ‘ .-_'.I ,‘ .:‘IN. e ! w B Jx ,-‘.II.’ 4 YR i ." - * & : f "5 I A ._.. ] _-... A - - ‘a-:-;; -ol & L Y. s . : . : :
| o4 s ian 4 L g A ﬁq"-. S A : “”“1: €ii ;Eg'“; x“;;fﬁw iF'V'T" {ffH >.&L “ﬂ;-;-;* w;ﬁ;;ﬂ_
. ' : i E ey i r . Ui Y. - s : = : ._‘-1 1 ‘{ 2 .-.',s.

L]
:; f f;_
ot ¥ Ny
o AR
bl !

.

. ¥

.

1

DAVID WILLIAMS . LS 5 ol R L TR R 3 -
41M9SMAIN ST = o SR | 8 JZABETH ACKERSON SR s ETE L e T ned SRR PRt W~ Sl o S\ T gk O N R ol -
By A SMAINSTREET ks - o[- SURER T v ) o Bl R iy = O SO A 4 DN O  J S W VR o -

PRI o g ) £/ iy e — 4" SANITARY SE

NT

|
l
|

ST el v Fom ——
i i

. . DAVID WILLIAMS _}4-*- N R . R | |
.| MANHOLE [ 4" SANITARY SERVICE 411 ST__ B CETUAIR L et e e % | . S NG e | . b R AR |
SRR P S R T e MA g e T e e 3707 S MAIN STREET!

< o ' ¢?Vﬁig”ﬂﬂ -

g iy NS A 3l s s
| Y5 ‘ el | 5 e | Peis e R Ve ) o q
- « A Ry S b iHILLIP MARTINGS & RS | el e B |
* ‘ ...‘. N} \ S | .-‘.:. I'_.- , S p “ ‘ é»' .' _‘. . i e ;--' . L . e _.'. 3. i 'g‘ .

Tty

oge wﬁf——f___ﬁ
ey R R |
l

_ 2 y ,
o A i ~ p ¥ A e D B
_ . I . 8" SANITARY MAIN
1:-_ v . " S Ty N e BN < 4 |é=
MANHOLE Joet ]
’ \ e S AR : ;s -’ - . WELY P s - : / . » P X j : , s - v A 24 : =F ] A
‘ - i [ y &:I / 7 1 Y ) . 1 o i * ol \ i s r Ay & VAR W '..-'!‘- 1 ".".«. ‘ . .\‘ 0 N = - o
& ' o 2 . - .: _.._:.‘ . U " - . --_-. P - . . i p ‘t'&-’ ! 4 \ . W --.'Trc'u-‘_l r':““l? % a | I_,“ » L

. o , - : X - N < L ' -
- | g S e
L

5
I

avOod TIIHN33YO

\ M
s T, 1 “‘x v 1
8 (%,

o8 =& TEMP EASEMENT

" o s
B iy

-

} I N ‘ .

2;hm

¥

g | SN u;f _ R~ IR ' 1) : a9 : i L O _f;_' T T GRS '"4 ;Q‘ * A ey ; -’T T R R RN S o 7] Y9 [ ﬁf:_;'r_ , @' ”;  IR e, S b
4319 S MAIN STREET ANDREW TILKES WALTER & JENNIFER ROGERS| By, oo R L s, 7 R R SR Nt S S R G i tha — e - PLIA MR e

; ot | ,. " s , e TR A A i — B . IS T B R = ok | | - | - 13925 S MAIN STREET #7 e ARC INF

. Y : - . i : } X . ! - : {* o o] < e o - : . . i = | . - 2
B e W SRR (3, =7 S B .4 > G e e T |. | | " T oAa e e Bane N7 7 TSR s b _ | (e V. . 1 % o _ CONSTRUCTION S [ s 4 39105 MAIN STREESE

S R RN b N Gl | | | " (1050 s - g7 A PR e ki o g AT S MAIN STREET. & | 0D AVID & LORI Y - 3 . GRANT & NATALIE MORFITT @8  ENTRANCE P N AV 2 R < SRR S T
SRR T R e N S | N S i L R J R Tl D AR S T 0719 S MAIN S 13 ' 4009 S MAIN STREET VARG e STV BTN TR | R 'AR%-_-RAS:HEAD
. | ~ [*“ WALTER & JENNIFER ROGERSL AT | N o i | o0 et i% . ey - ‘ Rl e JRE RS ST

.“..:

\| -,¢ L_f*gm éfﬁ' . i :
ﬂ’.‘_ A M g~ . = .- .‘--. ST"_’ "‘_" 4219 SMAIN STREET | '. ‘. g -_I . .-,-.. -, ; - T 1 Il lb .__._ A ‘ . ¢ - - ." "-N” o P P \ 1 d
i | e s o, o ELIZABETH ACKERSON; , -/}

e

9 S MAIN STREET

l.l “\ Y ¥

W 2 4 .
" § .q;-lh : = o _‘?. ) ’-x. \ i~ - .
.- :‘ 4 ._. T 1s ] r '.I ‘ - y . e - - - c ‘_ -." Tk { » 'I ... .' ! i . . 1 o 3 .‘ | . J X - [ 4 et iy ’ d
L - K ™ Y

" g 't

']

F 6

¥
| .
i!i. = A5 ' "
e e 4 ]
h""d—* --_-‘l‘—l. b
oy

i

-, ) } - -‘ q ¥

1 L Ay -
rb£~-&§;
t'rt- l _r' . -

2 k)

=Py
~ ) ™

iy,

i g 4 LA S —— - ey e
W i B i g s &) e e e T g

SOUTH MAIN STREET




Iltem 4.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
PHONE 319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

MEMORANDUM

Legal Services Division
Mayor Laudick, City Council

Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, and Mark Howard, Chief of Police
DATE: May 22, 2024
SUBJECT: Amendments to Chapter 6 of the Code of Ordinances

Mayor and Council might recall that the City is no longer contracting with the City of Waterloo for
animal control services, and instead this service is being handled by City personnel. This
change has prompted a review of relevant City ordinances and now to recommend some
changes to the City Code to better provide these services. Attached are the proposed
amendments. To briefly summarize:

Section 6-53: The City is instituting a micro-chipping program for stray animals, and the
recommended change to this ordinance contemplates identification by way of such a device for
purposes of naotification of an owner of an impounded animal.

Section 6-54: This entire Section of the Code is being revised to provide clarity in the
redemption process and to impose additional conditions of redemption of impounded animals
such as payment of a fee schedule approved boarding fee, a redemption fee, and registration
and micro-chipping of the animal. The requirement to license and vaccinate the animal
contained in the current ordinance is retained.

Section 6-58: These changes are for clarification purposes. For example, there is no
subsection (a)(3) in the ordinance so that reference is removed.

Section 6-134: Subsection (a)(2)(g) is proposed to be amended to require micro-chipping of
impounded dangerous animals.

Section 6-135: Requires the payment of boarding fees and the posting of a bond if a dangerous
animal determination is appealed. Experience has shown that these costs are not paid by the
owner after an appeal, leaving the City responsible for payment due to its contract with the
Humane Society.

Approval of these changes is recommended. For any questions of a substantive nature, please
feel free to contact Chief Howard.

16




ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE 1) AMENDING SECTION 6-53, IMPOUNDMENT OF DOGS, CATS
OR POULTRY RUNNING AT-LARGE, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, TO ALLOW
FOR DETERMINING OWNER INFORMATION BY ACCESSING TAGS AS WELL
AS ADDING CLARIFYING TERMS; AND 2) AMENDING SECTION 6-54,
REDEMPTION OF IMPOUNDED ANIMALS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, TO
ESTABLISH NEW PROCEDURES FOR REDEMPTION OF IMPOUNDED ANIMALS,
INCLUDING A REQUIREMENT THAT SUCH ANIMALS BE MICRO-CHIPPED; AND
3) AMENDING SUBSECTION (b), EXCEPTIONS, OF SECTION 6-58, PERMITTING
DOG, CAT OR POULTRY TO RUN AT-LARGE, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, TO
CLARIFY TERMS; AND 4) AMENDING UNTITLED SUBSECTION (a)(2)(g) OF
SECTION 6-134, DISPOSITION OF IMPOUNDED ANIMALS, OF DIVISION 3,
DANGEROUS ANIMALS, TO ADD MICROCHIPPING AS A CONDITION OF
RELEASE OF A DANGEROUS ANIMAL; AND 5) AMENDING SUBSECTION (a),
NOTIFICATION OF OWNER; APPEAL PROCEDURE, OF SECTION 6-135, NOTICE
OF DESTRUCTION OF ANIMAL; APPEAL, OF DIVISION 3, DANGEROUS
ANIMALS, TO REQUIRE THE POSTING OF A BOND IN THE EVENT OF APPEAL,
ALL OF ARTICLE I, ANIMAL CONTROL, OF CHAPTER 6, ANIMALS, OF THE
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA:

Section 1. Section 6-53, Impoundment of Dogs, Cats or Poultry Running At-
Large, of Division 1, Generally, of Article Il, Animal Control, of Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code
of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new
Section 6-53, Impoundment of Dogs, Cats or Poultry Running At-Large, is enacted in lieu
thereof, as follows:

Sec. 6-53. Impoundment of dogs, cats or poultry running at-large.

Any dog, cat or poultry found running at-large shall be apprehended and impounded. When such dog, cat or
poultry has been apprehended and impounded, the public safety services department or animal warden shall post
written notice on the residence of the dog, cat or poultry owner, if such owner’s name and current address can
reasonably be determined by accessing a tag or other device that is on or part of the animal. iskrewn—Fhe

knewn: Such written notice shall be posted within 2 days after the animal has been impounded. If an impounded
the-ownerdoesnotredeem-the dog, cat or poultry is not timely redeemed by the owner as provided in section 6-
542, the dog, cat or poultry may be humanely destroyed or otherwise disposed of in accordance with the law. The
impoundment and disposition provisions of this section do not apply to animals impounded under division 3 of this
article.

(Ord. No. 2984, § 2, 3-1-2021)

Section 2. Section 6-54, Redemption of Impounded Animals, of Division 1,
Generally, of Article Il, Animal Control, of Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances of the
City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 6-54, Redemption
of Impounded Animals, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows:

Iltem 4.

17




Item 4.

Sec. 6-54. Redemption of impounded animals.

(a) Holding of restrained or impounded animals. Any dog, cat or poultry restrained or impounded in

accordance with the provisions of this article will be held for a period of seven days after delivery of
notice to the owner as provided in sec. 6-53, or for a period of three days for any dog, cat or poultry
whose owner cannot be reasonably determined as provided in sec. 6-53. Litters of puppies and kittens
may be held for only 24 hours. The period of restraint or impoundment may be extended if required by
the local health board.

Redemption of impounded or restrained animals. The owner of a dog, cat, poultry, or other animal that is
restrained or impounded may redeem the animal only if the owner complies with the following within
the holding period set forth in this section:

(b

—

(1) Pay to the boarding agency any accrued boarding fees which shall be established by the city council
by resolution from time to time.

(2) Pay to the impounding agency a redemption fee which shall be established by the city council by
resolution from time to time.

(3) If the animal is unlicensed as required in this article, obtain a license along with any required
vaccinations, at the owner’s cost.

(4) If the animal is a dog or cat, register the dog or cat with the boarding agency and allow the boarding
agency or designee to affix to the dog or cat a permanent microchip implant that includes the
registration number and other identification information as determined by the boarding agency.
Only if a microchip implant is impractical or would endanger the life or health of the dog or cat as
determined by a licensed veterinarian will an alternate form of permanent identification be allowed.
Such permanent identification shall be at the owner’s cost. No person shall remove or alter such
permanent identification once it is affixed.

(c) The impoundment and redemption provisions of this section do not apply to animals impounded under
division 3 of this article.

(Ord. No. 2984, § 2, 3-1-2021)

Section 3. Subsection (b), Exceptions, of Section 6-58, Permitting Dog, Cat or
Poultry to Run At-Large, of Division 1, Generally, of Article I, Animal Control, of Chapter 6,
Animals, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby repealed in its
entirety and a new Subsection (b), Exceptions, of Section 6-58 is enacted in lieu thereof, as
follows:

Sec. 6-58. Permitting dog, cat or poultry to run at-large.

[unchanged provisions omitted]

18




(b)  Exceptions. The foregoing subsections (a)(2)-ane-a}3} of this section shall not apply to service dogs or
assistive animals used by disabledhandicapped persons.

[unchanged provisions omitted]

Section 4. Untitled Subsection (a)(2)(g), of Section 6-134, Disposition of
Impounded Animals, of Division 3, Dangerous Animals, of Article II, Animal Control, of Chapter
6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby repealed in its
entirety and a new Untitled Subsection (a)(2)(g) of Section 6-134 is enacted in lieu thereof, as
follows:

Sec. 6-134. Disposition of impounded animals.

(a)  Within 48 hours after impoundment of any dangerous animal, the chief of police or designee shall review the
circumstances surrounding the impoundment and shall do one of the following:

(1) Retain such animal for purposes of observation and evaluation for a period not to exceed 30 days, in
which case the owner, if known, shall be promptly notified thereof in writing.

(2) Release such animal to the control of its owner pursuant to a written agreement to be signed by the
owner, upon such terms and conditions as the chief of police deems reasonably necessary to ensure
the public safety, including, but not limited to, the following requirements:

[unchanged provisions omitted]

g. Requiring the owner to registertattee the dangerous animal and allow a permanent microchip
implant to be affixed to the dangerous animal that includes the registration number and other
identification information as determined by the chief of police. Only if a microchip implant is
impractical or would endanger the life or health of the dangerous animal as determined by a
licensed veterinarian will an alternate form of permanent identification be allowed, such as
tattooing.te-previdepermanentidentification-of theanimal_Permanent identification in this
manner may be required as a condition of release of the dangerous animal to its owner
regardless of the outcome of any appeal.

[unchanged provisions omitted]

Section 5. Subsection (a), Notification of Owner; Appeal Procedure, of Section
6-135, Notice of Destruction of Animal; Appeal, of Division 3, Dangerous Animals, of Article II,
Animal Control, of Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls,
lowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Subsection (a), Notification of Owner; Appeal
Procedure, of Section 6-135 is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows:

Sec. 6-135. Notice of destruction of animal; appeal.

(a)  Notification of owner; appeal procedure.

(1) If the chief of police determines that a dangerous animal which has been impounded pursuant to this
division is to be destroyed pursuant to the provisions of section 6-134(a)(3), the chief of police shall
notify the owner of such animal in writing, at least ten days in advance, of the intent to destroy the
animal, and further inform such owner of the owner's right to appeal as provided by this section.

(2) The owner of such animal may, at any time prior to the date upon which the animal is to be destroyed,
appeal the determination of the chief of police to the administration committee of the city council by
filing a written notice of such appeal with the city clerk.

Item 4.

19




(3) No appeal may be filed until all boarding costs incurred to date have been paid by the owner, and a
cash bond or a bond issued by a surety approved by the city is filed with the city clerk in the penal sum
of $1000.00 which is the estimated cost of boarding that will be incurred during the pendency of the
appeal.

(43) After receipt of a notice of appeal under this section, the city clerk shall calendar the appeal for hearing
by the administration committee of the city council, and shall notify the owner and the chief of police
of such action.

(54) The chief of police shall not thereafter destroy such animal until the administration committee of the
city council shall have first heard the appeal and rendered its decision.

(65) Any owner of a dangerous animal who fails to file an appeal or to appear at such hearing after being
given notice as provided in this section shall be deemed to have waived any right in or claim to such
animal or any right to claim any damages or other relief by reason of any action by the chief of police
pursuant to this division.

[unchanged provisions omitted]

INTRODUCED:

PASSED 15T CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 2N° CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 3RP CONSIDERATIONI:

ADOPTED:

Daniel Laudick, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk

Item 4.

20




Item 4.

21




ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE 1) AMENDING SECTION 6-53, IMPOUNDMENT OF DOGS, CATS
OR POULTRY RUNNING AT-LARGE, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, TO ALLOW
FOR DETERMINING OWNER INFORMATION BY ACCESSING TAGS AS WELL
AS ADDING CLARIFYING TERMS; AND 2) AMENDING SECTION 6-54,
REDEMPTION OF IMPOUNDED ANIMALS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, TO
ESTABLISH NEW PROCEDURES FOR REDEMPTION OF IMPOUNDED ANIMALS,
INCLUDING A REQUIREMENT THAT SUCH ANIMALS BE MICRO-CHIPPED; AND
3) AMENDING SUBSECTION (b), EXCEPTIONS, OF SECTION 6-58, PERMITTING
DOG, CAT OR POULTRY TO RUN AT-LARGE, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, TO
CLARIFY TERMS; AND 4) AMENDING UNTITLED SUBSECTION (a)(2)(g) OF
SECTION 6-134, DISPOSITION OF IMPOUNDED ANIMALS, OF DIVISION 3,
DANGEROUS ANIMALS, TO ADD MICROCHIPPING AS A CONDITION OF
RELEASE OF A DANGEROUS ANIMAL; AND 5) AMENDING SUBSECTION (a),
NOTIFICATION OF OWNER; APPEAL PROCEDURE, OF SECTION 6-135, NOTICE
OF DESTRUCTION OF ANIMAL; APPEAL, OF DIVISION 3, DANGEROUS
ANIMALS, TO REQUIRE THE POSTING OF A BOND IN THE EVENT OF APPEAL,
ALL OF ARTICLE I, ANIMAL CONTROL, OF CHAPTER 6, ANIMALS, OF THE
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA:

Section 1. Section 6-53, Impoundment of Dogs, Cats or Poultry Running At-
Large, of Division 1, Generally, of Article 1l, Animal Control, of Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code
of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new
Section 6-53, Impoundment of Dogs, Cats or Poultry Running At-Large, is enacted in lieu
thereof, as follows:

Sec. 6-53. Impoundment of dogs, cats or poultry running at-large.

Any dog, cat or poultry found running at-large shall be apprehended and impounded. When such
dog, cat or poultry has been apprehended and impounded, the public safety services department or
animal warden shall post written notice on the residence of the dog, cat or poultry owner, if such owner’s
name and current address can reasonably be determined by accessing a tag or other device that is on or
part of the animal. Such written notice shall be posted within 2 days after the animal has been
impounded. If an impounded dog, cat or poultry is not timely redeemed by the owner as provided in
section 6-54, the dog, cat or poultry may be humanely destroyed or otherwise disposed of in accordance
with the law. The impoundment and disposition provisions of this section do not apply to animals
impounded under division 3 of this article.

(Ord. No. 2984, § 2, 3-1-2021)

Section 2. Section 6-54, Redemption of Impounded Animals, of Division 1,
Generally, of Article 1l, Animal Control, of Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances of the
City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 6-54, Redemption
of Impounded Animals, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows:

Iltem 4.

22




Sec. 6-54. Redemption of impounded animals.

(a) Holding of restrained or impounded animals. Any dog, cat or poultry restrained or impounded in
accordance with the provisions of this article will be held for a period of seven days after delivery
of notice to the owner as provided in sec. 6-53, or for a period of three days for any dog, cat or
poultry whose owner cannot be reasonably determined as provided in sec. 6-53. Litters of
puppies and kittens may be held for only 24 hours. The period of restraint or impoundment may
be extended if required by the local health board.

(b) Redemption of impounded or restrained animals. The owner of a dog, cat, poultry, or other
animal that is restrained or impounded may redeem the animal only if the owner complies with
the following within the holding period set forth in this section:

(1) Pay to the boarding agency any accrued boarding fees which shall be established by the
city council by resolution from time to time.

(2) Pay to the impounding agency a redemption fee which shall be established by the city
council by resolution from time to time.

(3) If the animal is unlicensed as required in this article, obtain a license along with any
required vaccinations, at the owner’s cost.

(4) If the animal is a dog or cat, register the dog or cat with the boarding agency and allow the
boarding agency or designee to affix to the dog or cat a permanent microchip implant that
includes the registration number and other identification information as determined by the
boarding agency. Only if a microchip implant is impractical or would endanger the life or
health of the dog or cat as determined by a licensed veterinarian will an alternate form of
permanent identification be allowed. Such permanent identification shall be at the owner’s
cost. No person shall remove or alter such permanent identification once it is affixed.

(c) The impoundment and redemption provisions of this section do not apply to animals impounded
under division 3 of this article.

(Ord. No. 2984, § 2, 3-1-2021)

Section 3. Subsection (b), Exceptions, of Section 6-58, Permitting Dog, Cat or
Poultry to Run At-Large, of Division 1, Generally, of Article 1I, Animal Control, of Chapter 6,
Animals, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby repealed in its
entirety and a new Subsection (b), Exceptions, of Section 6-58 is enacted in lieu thereof, as
follows:

Sec. 6-58. Permitting dog, cat or poultry to run at-large.

[unchanged provisions omitted]

(b) Exceptions. The foregoing subsection (a)(2) of this section shall not apply to service dogs or
assistive animals used by disabled persons.

[unchanged provisions omitted]

Section 4. Untitled Subsection (a)(2)(g), of Section 6-134, Disposition of
Impounded Animals, of Division 3, Dangerous Animals, of Article Il, Animal Control, of Chapter
6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby repealed in its
entirety and a new Untitled Subsection (a)(2)(g) of Section 6-134 is enacted in lieu thereof, as
follows:

Iltem 4.

23




Sec. 6-134. Disposition of impounded animals.

(@)

Within 48 hours after impoundment of any dangerous animal, the chief of police or designee shall
review the circumstances surrounding the impoundment and shall do one of the following:

(1) Retain such animal for purposes of observation and evaluation for a period not to exceed 30
days, in which case the owner, if known, shall be promptly notified thereof in writing.

(2) Release such animal to the control of its owner pursuant to a written agreement to be signed
by the owner, upon such terms and conditions as the chief of police deems reasonably
necessary to ensure the public safety, including, but not limited to, the following requirements:

[unchanged provisions omitted]

g. Requiring the owner to register the dangerous animal and allow a permanent microchip
implant to be affixed to the dangerous animal that includes the registration number and
other identification information as determined by the chief of police. Only if a microchip
implant is impractical or would endanger the life or health of the dangerous animal as
determined by a licensed veterinarian will an alternate form of permanent identification be
allowed, such as tattooing. Permanent identification in this manner may be required as a
condition of release of the dangerous animal to its owner regardless of the outcome of
any appeal.

[unchanged provisions omitted]

Section 5. Subsection (a), Notification of Owner; Appeal Procedure, of

Section 6-135, Notice of Destruction of Animal; Appeal, of Division 3, Dangerous Animals, of
Article 1I, Animal Control, of Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar
Falls, lowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Subsection (a), Notification of Owner;
Appeal Procedure, of Section 6-135 is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows:

Sec. 6-135. Notice of destruction of animal; appeal.

(@)

Notification of owner; appeal procedure.

(1) If the chief of police determines that a dangerous animal which has been impounded pursuant
to this division is to be destroyed pursuant to the provisions of section 6-134(a)(3), the chief of
police shall notify the owner of such animal in writing, at least ten days in advance, of the intent
to destroy the animal, and further inform such owner of the owner's right to appeal as provided
by this section.

(2) The owner of such animal may, at any time prior to the date upon which the animal is to be
destroyed, appeal the determination of the chief of police to the administration committee of
the city council by filing a written notice of such appeal with the city clerk.

(3) No appeal may be filed until all boarding costs incurred to date have been paid by the owner,
and a cash bond or a bond issued by a surety approved by the city is filed with the city clerk in
the penal sum of $1000.00 which is the estimated cost of boarding that will be incurred during
the pendency of the appeal.

(4) After receipt of a notice of appeal under this section, the city clerk shall calendar the appeal for
hearing by the administration committee of the city council, and shall notify the owner and the
chief of police of such action.

(5) The chief of police shall not thereafter destroy such animal until the administration committee
of the city council shall have first heard the appeal and rendered its decision.

(6) Any owner of a dangerous animal who fails to file an appeal or to appear at such hearing after
being given notice as provided in this section shall be deemed to have waived any right in or

Iltem 4.

24




claim to such animal or any right to claim any damages or other relief by reason of any action

by the chief of police pursuant to this division.

INTRODUCED:

[unchanged provisions omitted]

June 3, 2024

Iltem 4.

PASSED 15T CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 2NP CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 3RP CONSIDERATION:

ADOPTED:

June 3, 2024

June 17, 2024

ATTEST:

Daniel Laudick, Mayor

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk

25




Item 5.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Phone: 319-273-8600

Fax: 319-273-8610

www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM
Planning & Community Services Division

TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council
FROM: Michelle Pezley, AICP, Planner Il
DATE: June 17, 2024
SUBJECT: Rezoning Request- 2216 Main Street, and 127 E 23" Street (RZ24-001)

REQUEST: Rezone property from M-1 Light Industrial to C-2 Retail Commercial.

PETITIONER: Seven D LLC, owner; Chris Fischels of Fischels Commercial & Residential
Group, applicant

LOCATION: 2216 Main Street, and 127 E 23" Street; West of Main Street; North of E
Seerley Blvd. (RZ24-002)

PROPOSAL

Seven D LLC requested a rezoning of three properties, 2300 Main Street, 2216 Main Street,
and 127 E 23rd Street from M-1 Light Industrial to C-2 Commercial. The proposal is to rezone
a 3.8-acre site owned by Seven D LLC located north of E Seerley Blvd from M-1 Light
Industrial to C-2 Retail Commercial District. The rezoning of 2300 Main Street is in progress.

BACKGROUND

Before the City Council hearing on May 20, 2024, staff determined that the legal description
submitted by the applicant was inaccurate and did not include 2216 Main Street and 127 E
23rd Street parcels. Due to this error, the published notice of hearing only included the legal
description for the larger parcel at 2300 Main Street.

On May 20, 2024, based on staff's recommendation to keep the rezoning request moving
forward for the benefit of the applicant, the City Council held a Public Hearing and approved
the first reading of the rezoning of the parcel at 2300 Main Street.

A new legal description for the two smaller lots was submitted by the applicant to move forward
with the rezoning of the two smaller lots.

In 2024, a dentist’s office is interested in leasing space in the building. The M-1 District does
not allow institutions for human care, such as a dentist’s office. The applicant proposes to

26




Item 5.

rezone the property to allow a dental clinic in one of the lease spaces. The two smaller lots will
be used for parking and landscaping to support 2300 Main Street.

~
(72
c
O
S
o
=
=
"
]
—

ANALYSIS

CURRENT ZONING

The purpose of the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District is to provide an environment suitable for
industrial activities that do not create visible nuisance or hazards to surrounding properties. It
allows most uses that are within the C-3 District except for any dwellings, schools, hospitals,
clinics, or other institutions for human care with the exception of daycare uses. This ensures

compatibility of uses because some for industrial uses could have an unintended effect on
human care uses.

27




Item 5.

The request is to change the zoning on two parcels totaling 0.6 acres of land located north of E
Seerley Blvd from M-1 Light Industrial to C-2 Retail Commercial District.

PROPOSED ZONING

The C-2 Retail Commercial District Zone is intended to provide space for regional and
neighborhood retail uses. Uses allowed in C-2 include dwellings, schools, hospitals, clinics, or
other institutions for human care.

The site is surrounded by residential uses and a former gas station along the west, a lumber
yard to the north, and an auto quick lube to the south. The properties to the north, east, and
south are within the M-1 Zoning District. The residential properties to the west are in the R-4
Zoning District and the former gas station location is in the C-2 Zoning District. Staff finds that
the zoning change will be compatible with the surrounding area and will allow for a more
compatible use next to the residential uses to the west.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

The Future Land Use Map identifies these two parcels as Community Commercial. The
requested C-2 zoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the request would not
require an amendment to the Future Land Use Map.

ACCESS TO PUBLIC SERVICES
The property is in a developed area of the city and has access for corinection to all utilities and
public services.

ACCESS TO ADEQUATE STREET NETWORK
The properties have access from Main Street

PUBLIC NOTICE
City staff mailed letters to the surrounding property owners notifying them of the rezoning
request.

TECHNICAL COMMENTS
The City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities, have no concerns with the proposed
rezoning request.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of the rezoning request.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

Introduction Chairperson Hartley introduced the next item, a request to rezone property located near

3/27/2024 the intersection of Main Street and Seerley Boulevard. Ms. Pezley, Planner Ill, presented
the staff report, describing the location, uses of surrounding properties, the basic review
criteria for a rezoning, and the applicant’s reason for requesting the rezoning. The property
is currently M-1 Light Industrial District, and the request is to rezone the property to C-2
Commercial District. The applicant would like to add a dental clinic in the building, which
is not allowed in the M-1 zoning district. Ms. Pezley noted that the proposed rezoning is
consistent with the Future Land Use Map, which identifies this area as appropriate for
community commercial uses. She noted that all necessary public infrastructure is available
to support the proposed zoning change.

28




Public
Hearing
4/10/2024

Item 5.

Moser asked if a collision center (auto body repair) would be allowed if the zoning
change is approved. Ms. Pezley confirmed that an auto body repair shop would not be
allowed if rezoned to C-2. Moser asked how the city would follow up if there were any
changes to the use that transformed it into an auto body repair shop. Pezley noted that
the staff report was very detailed on what was allowed in the C-2 Zone with the auto
detailing shop. If the use changed to a more extensive repair shop, this would provide
context and help determine if there was a code violation.

Stalnaker asked how the code enforcement changes between the current zoning and
proposed zoning. Pezley explained that the detailing shop as currently described by
the applicant would be allowed in the proposed zoning district.

Stalnaker asked if the use ever gets to be a nuisance to the neighborhood, how would
the City handle that. Howard explained that if the property owner was changing the
use, they would have to come to the city for building permits and the change of use
would be reviewed at that time. Howard understands that there is a fine line between
the proposed detailing shop and an auto body repair shop and that is why staff asked
the applicant to describe the use in detail for the record. Howard explained that the C-2
zone allows for many commercial uses such as auto service, but it does not allow auto
body work/collision center. This change would go to a less intense use than the current
zone which is in a direction that would be more compatible with the comprehensive
plan. The building was previously used for commercial uses, and they would like to
continue to use the building for commercial uses.

Henderson asked if the owner could use the building as a collision center today and
Howard said yes. Henderson points out that the rezoning would ensure a less intense
use for the neighbors moving forward.

Chris Fischels, representing the property owner, said that this is the first time that he
has seen an applicant request a down-zoning, but the owner would like to lease space
for a dental clinic. He was there to answer any questions. There were no questions or
comments from the Commission.

Dr. Spencer Walker, 3413 Pheasant Dr., Cedar Falls. Walker is the dentist who wants
to lease space in the building. Walker has been working in Cedar Falls for 13 years
and has outgrown his current office. Walker plans to stay in Cedar Falls for many years
to come and thinks this would be a good location for the clinic.

Hartley asked for any more comments and there were none. Hartley shared that he
thought that this was great repurpose of the building. Moser agreed.

Sorensen moved to set the public hearing for the April 10, 2024, Planning and Zoning
Commission meeting. Henderson seconded the motion. The motion was approved
unanimously on a voice vote.

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a rezoning request for 2300 Main
Street, 2216 Main Street and 127 E. 23" Street. Chair Hartley introduced the item and
Ms. Howard discussed the notice that is required for rezoning requests. She explained
that the required notice did not get published in the Courier. She provided two options for
proceeding with the item. The Commission can waive the notice requirement per City
Code, hold the public hearing and make a recommendation to City Council to approve the
rezoning request or postpone the hearing to the next meeting. She noted that regardless
of which option the Commission chooses, the case will not be scheduled for a Council
meeting until May 6, so the decision will not slow down the process for the applicant.

29




Attachments:

Item 5.

Sorensen made a motion to waive the notice requirement. Henderson seconded the
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Alberhasky, Grybovych,
Hartley, Henderson, Johnson, Leeper, Moser and Sorensen), and 0 nays.

Ms. Pezley provided background information, explaining the criteria for considering a
rezoning. She discussed the characteristics of the designation and the allowable uses.
She noted that the property is in a developed area of the city and has access to all utilities
and public services and is consistent with the Future Land Use Map. The property also
has direct access to Main Street and E. Seerley Boulevard. Staff recommends approval
of the rezoning.

Chris Fischels, 4200 West Rock Road, Hudson, lowa stated that he is available to answer
any questions.

Sorenson made a motion to approve the item. Johnson seconded the motion. The motion
was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Alberhasky, Grybovych, Hartley, Henderson,
Johnson, Leeper, Moser and Sorensen), and 0 nays.

Location Map
Rezoning Exhibit Plat

30




=1
S il
il

@
N
~ State St

W 21st St E 21st St

Main+St

W 22nd St R-4 E 22nd St

R2 |
:
% 5 *
3 2 = M-1\ l
T 2
2
/ ‘;
t] -
b
- oAl
— V}Seerley-Blvd—‘ 5 i c,edat"“‘“em

= Tz “E Seerley Blvd

EDunk;" Rd i
i E Lone Tre!Rd % Waterloo 1]
. % Regional / ——
o £ Airport
b 2 / R-3
: _. o Y
R U n \ oSt
WAAstSt— Edstst o
%
£ —— N
W12th St S /
iw st (%, { =
i OO% Rﬂinbow Dr (= :"‘ <!
5 Watthst = - ':
§ 4 . \ / = e Skate
k| (.a Orchard Dr-— ™ | Park
Do L 7 o
W Greenhill Rd~~~—E Greenhill Rd
@
-NB
W

Grove St

UnionRd

S ORI S e Rezoning request from M-1 to C-2
2216 Main Street & 127 E. 23rd Street
(RZ24-001)

n

|
W Viki |
Industrial Park Cedar Falls

31

W.Ridgeway Ave—;
=)




-
e Y

i*

W - . 5 . iy
X Y L F-_‘-‘- - ey v i,

TN ‘t_,‘;; VT
- } -ﬁv i .

'

e
N

(1)
O
(1)
(70

REZONING REQUEST
“M-1" TO “C-2"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT A




Prepared by: Michelle Pezley, Planner 111, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, 1A 50613 (319) 273-8600

ORDINANCE NO. 3069

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,
IOWA FOR APPROXIMATELY 0.6 ACRES OF LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN, REMOVING
SAID AREA FROM THE M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT AND ADDING IT TO THE

C-2 COMMERCIAL DISTRICT

WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
to rezone approximately 0.6 acres of property from M-1 Light Industrial District to C-2
Commercial District, more specifically described below; and

WHEREAS, said C-2 Commercial District allows for community commercial that meets
the principles of the Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan and Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the rezoning request and
find that said rezoning is consistent with the City of Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan and public
services are available to support development according to the C-2 Commercial District; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of Cedar Falls, lowa, deems it to be in the best interests of the
City of Cedar Falls, lowa, to approve said rezoning; and

WHEREAS, Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article IIl,
Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of
the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa is
incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance by reference; and

WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such hearing
held on the proposed amendment; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR
FALLS, IOWA:

Section 1. That the following described real estate, be and the same is hereby removed from
the M-1 Light Industrial District and added to the C-2 Commercial District:

Legal Description

That part of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 13, Township 89 North,
Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, lowa, described as follows:

Item 5.

33




Beginning at a point on the South line of said Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, which
point is 220 feet East of the East line of the Chicago, Great Western Railroad right-of-way, said
point also being 323 feet East of the Southwest corner of said Northwest Quarter of the Southeast
Quarter; thence East along said South line. 60 feet; thence North and parallel to said Railroad right-
of-way, 200 feet; thence West and parallel to said South line, 60 feet; thence South and parallel to
said Chicago, Great Western Railroad right-of-way, 200 feet, to the place of beginning.

AND

That part of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 13. Township 89 North,
Range 14 West of the 5th P. M., Black Hawk, County, lowa, described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the South line of said Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, which
point is 160 feet East of the East line of the Chicago, Great Western Railroad right-of-way, said
point also being 263 feet East of the Southwest corner of said Northwest Quarter of the Southeast
Quarter; thence East along said South line, 60 feet; thence North and parallel to said Railroad right
-of-way, 200 feet; thence West and parallel to said South line, 60 feet; thence South and parallel
to said Chicago, Great Western Railroad right-of-way, 200 feet, to the place of beginning.

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, be and the same is hereby
amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the C-2, Commercial
District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls,
lowa, as amended.

INTRODUCED: June 17, 2024
PASSED 1°" CONSIDERATION: June 17, 2024
PASSED 2"° CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 3R° CONSIDERATION:

ADOPTED:

ATTEST: Daniel Laudick, Mayor

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk

Item 5.

34




ADMINISTRATION DIVISION
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8629

FAX 319-273-8632

OPERATIONS AND
MAINTENANCE DIVISION
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY
318-273-8629

FAX 319-273-8632

Item 6.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

MEMORANDUM

TO:
FROM:
DATE:
SUBJECT:

Mayor Danny Laudick and City Council
Brian Heath, Oper./Maint. Division Manager } \
June 10, 2024 !

Refuse Callection Ordinance Modification

Please find attached for consideration proposed changes to Chapter 10, GARBAGE AND
REFUSE of the City Ordinance. As you may recall, a presentation was made to Council
on March 3, 2024, proposing a service fee for overfilled carts and return service trips for
late placement of carts. The proposed service fees are $15.00 each for overfilled carts
and return service for late placement.

You will also notice other housekeeping modifications that were made. One in particular,
is the removal of language related to asphalt shingle recycling that was discontinued
due to DNR regulations.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.

CC: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director

Att.

35




ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE 1) AMENDING SECTION 10-3, CONTAINERS; PLACEMENT FOR
COLLECTION; PENALTY FOR VIOLATION, TO ADD A MUNICIPAL INFRACTION
FOR OVERFILLED GARBAGE AND YARD WASTE CONTAINERS; AND 2)
AMENDING SUBSECTION (g), GARBAGE AND REFUSE AND YARD WASTE
SERVICE CHARGES, OF SECTION 10-5, SERVICE CHARGES--ESTABLISHED,
TO REMOVE FEES FOR ASPHALT SHINGLE RECYCLING NO LONGER
OFFERED AND TO ADD A FEE FOR RETURN GARBAGE COLLECTIONS; AND 3)
REPEALING IN ITS ENTIRETY SUBSECTION (h), THE PLACING OF OR FAILURE
TO REMOVE GARBAGE OR YARD WASTE CONTAINER WITHIN SPECIFIED
TIME LIMITS, AND REPEALING IN ITS ENTIRETY SUBSECTION (i), ASPHALT
SHINGLE RECYCLING, BOTH OF SECTION 10-5, SERVICE CHARGES—
ESTABLISHED, TO REMOVE SUPERFLUOUS PROVISIONS, ALL OF ARTICLE |,
IN GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 10, GARBAGE AND REFUSE, OF THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA:

Section 1. Section 10-3, Containers; Placement for Collection; Penalty for Violation, of

Article |, In General, of Chapter 10, Garbage and Refuse, of the Code of Ordinances of the City
of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 10-3, Containers;
Placement for Collection; Penalty for Violation, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows:

Sec. 10-3. Containers; placement for collection; penalty for violation.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(e€)

Every owner or occupant of any private dwelling, trailer, apartment or business establishment shall have all
garbage drained and bagged for deposit and placed in a publicly owned container, unless otherwise
exempted from use of city collection service by the director of public works pursuant to section 10-2(3) and
(4). All yard waste shall be placed in special publicly owned yard waste containers for automated pickup,
except for leaves made available for a special fall leaf pickup on such schedule and in such manner as shall be
determined by the city.

Unless otherwise specified by the director of public works, publicly owned garbage and yard waste
containers shall be placed in a neat and orderly manner in the front of the premises at or near the curb line
s0 as to allow the most convenient collection. All privately owned garbage and refuse containers shall
likewise be placed in a neat and orderly manner in the front of the premises at or near the curb line or at the
rear of the premises or near the edge of an alley, as the case may be.-Ne-publicly-orprivately-ewned garbage
containes, and-no-publicly-owred-yardwastecentamer, shall be so placed prorto-o90 - ui-the doy
preceding-collecHan-and-the same-must-be removed-net-lalerthen¥-00-p-m—on the day ol-collection of a5
atherwise directed by-the-director of publicwerks:

No publicly or privately owned garbage container, and no publicly owned yard waste container, shall be
placed prior to 6:00 p.m. on the day preceding collection and the same must be removed not later than 8:00

__Na publicly or privately owned garbage conlainer, and no publicly owned yard waste container, shall be

overfilled, which is defined as the contents of the container being in such a guantity as 10 result in the
container lid being open greater than forty-five degrees from full dosure at the time of collection

In areas designated by the director of public works as one-sided collection areas, all publicly owned garbage
and yard waste containers shall be placed as provided for in subsection (b) of this section except that such

Item 6.

36




containers shall be placed at or near the same curb line on the same side of the street or alley as indicated in
the designation.

(fd) The director of public works shall have the authority to designate the proper placement for collection, if
other than as provided for in subsection (b) of this section, of publicly and privately owned garbage
containers and publicly owned yard waste containers for every private dwelling, trailer, apartment or
business establishment, provided that the owner or occupant is given at least 30 days' advance notice prior
to the effective date of the designation.

(g) A person who violates any provision of this section shall be deemed to have committed a municipal
infraction, and shall be subject to punishment as loliows:

(1) Forviolation of subsection {a)}, (b}, (e}, or {f),

civil penalty as provided in section 1-9({a}.

(2) For violation of subsection (c) or (d), a civil penalty in the amount of $15.00 for each occurrence

(h)  Violation of any provision of this section may result in the assessment of infraction peints against the owner
of a dwelling unit subject to the Cedar Falls Minimum Rental-Housing Code, in addition to the penalty
specified herein.

(Code 2017, § 12-3; Ord. No. 2656, § 1, 5-27-2008; Ord. No. 2896, § 2, 3-6-2017; Ord. No. 2941, § 3, 6-3-2019)

Section 2. Subsection (g), Garbage and Refuse and Yard Waste Service
Charges, of Section 10-5, Service Charges—Established, of Article |, In General, of Chapter 10,
Garbage and Refuse, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falis, lowa, is hereby
repealed in its entirety and a new Subsection (g), Garbage and Refuse and Yard Waste Service
Charges, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows:

Sec. 10-5. Service charges—Established.

[unchanged provisions omitted]

(8) Garbage and refuse and yard waste service charges.

Item 6.

Christmas tree tags purchased for disposal of trees for | $1.25/each
pick-up at curb
Appliances brought to the city transfer station $10.00/each
Cathode ray tube monitors (computer and television $7.50/each
monitors)
Automobile tire $2.50/each
With rim $5.00/each
Truck or tractor tire $6.50/each
With rim $9.00/each
Purchase of empty bags for sand at the city transfer $0.50/each
station
Yard waste containers (other than city-issued $0.75/each
containers) brought to the city transfer station
Garbage bag tags placed on top of cart at curb $1.25/each
Dumping of commercial or apartment dumpsters See subsection 10.5(f) for rate schedule
Three yard containers See subsection 10.5(f) for rate schedule

37




Item 6.

Solid waste disposal bags brought to the city transfer $0.75/each
station
Minimum tipping fees at the city transfer station:
Solid waste up to 260 pounds $7.00/dump
Yard waste up to 400 pounds $7.00/dump
Solid Waste / Demolition dumping at the city transfer | $65.00/ton
station
Yard waste $29.50/ton
Scale charge $3.00
Cart delivery; exchanging automated carts (this charge | $20.00
will be implemented if resident continues to change
sizes)
Leaf vacuum service $50.00
Asphali-shingles broc ol contaminanisbroupht 1o 4000 Len
shinglefeeyetingsite-ateity-transferstation
Asphait shingles<cantairing-contaminants dumped-at SEL-00MeRplus 1000 tan service charge
shingle-reevelingsie-atcity-transferstation
Additional yard waste container (no more than a total | $50.00
of two; non-refundable fee)
Commercial Cardboard Containers $10.00/dump
Commercial Bulk Recycling drop off $50.00/dump
Return Service Fee $15,00

Se

()

{iy-

[unchanged provisions omitted]

Section 3. Subsection (h), The Placing of or Failure to Remove Garbage or Yard Waste
Container Within Specified Time Limits, and Subsection (i), Asphalt Shingle Recycling, both of
Section 10-5, Service Charges—Established, of Article |, In General, of Chapter 10, Garbage

and Refuse, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, are hereby repealed in
their entirety, as follows:

¢. 10-5. Service charges—Established.

[unchanged provisions omitted]

The placing-of-ai-faireto-rempve-gairbage o1 pyurd wasiecomtiieswithitspoctiied -t theplacing
elartailure 1o remove a garbage of yard wastecontamer as requied n section-10-3{b)shall resulbing
serylceharge obSL Ob-pireteirence - be asses el 10 s owne-o-oocapant-oh oy e e dwelling,
trader - spartment-orbusiness establishmentthesameto-becollsctad as provided insecbian 10-6,

Asphalt-stinglerecyeling-Armasphalshinglereeyehnpgsiteat-the-aty-lransierstationshall-be-provided-w

arderig-accept asphalt-stinghes forreeycing -Asphalt shingles which-aretreeatcontammants whichncuds,

butare not-linted-to-wood, meta-ashing, shinglewfapperstrasharotherdebns, shallbeateepteado
reeyehngatthe-city-transter station at o laverabletippmp-lecas set erthin the table contained in
subseetion {ghetthisseetionHoweverasghall shingles contaiung comntaminantswhich-e-domped at-the
shingle-reeyching site gt thecity Uansferstativnshallbesubecnetenly 1o the vonmab-uppiig fee tor
demelien-gdumping at-the ety tansterstaben-butshallalo besubect 109 $10.00 per topservce churpe
all-as setdortn-thetable-cantdinedipsubsection-(phol this section:

38




INTRODUCED:

PASSED 15T CONSIDERATION:
PASSED 2"° CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 3R° CONSIDERATIONI:

ADOPTED:

ATTEST:

Item 6.

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk

Daniel Laudick, Mayor

39




ORDINANCE NO. 3070

AN ORDINANCE 1) AMENDING SECTION 10-3, CONTAINERS; PLACEMENT FOR
COLLECTION; PENALTY FOR VIOLATION, TO ADD A MUNICIPAL INFRACTION
FOR OVERFILLED GARBAGE AND YARD WASTE CONTAINERS; AND 2)
AMENDING SUBSECTION (g), GARBAGE AND REFUSE AND YARD WASTE
SERVICE CHARGES, OF SECTION 10-5, SERVICE CHARGES--ESTABLISHED,
TO REMOVE FEES FOR ASPHALT SHINGLE RECYCLING NO LONGER
OFFERED AND TO ADD A FEE FOR RETURN GARBAGE COLLECTIONS; AND 3)
REPEALING IN ITS ENTIRETY SUBSECTION (h), THE PLACING OF OR FAILURE
TO REMOVE GARBAGE OR YARD WASTE CONTAINER WITHIN SPECIFIED
TIME LIMITS, AND REPEALING IN ITS ENTIRETY SUBSECTION (i), ASPHALT
SHINGLE RECYCLING, BOTH OF SECTION 10-5, SERVICE CHARGES—
ESTABLISHED, TO REMOVE SUPERFLUOUS PROVISIONS, ALL OF ARTICLE I,
IN GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 10, GARBAGE AND REFUSE, OF THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA:

Section 1. Section 10-3, Containers; Placement for Collection; Penalty for Violation, of

Article I, In General, of Chapter 10, Garbage and Refuse, of the Code of Ordinances of the City
of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 10-3, Containers;
Placement for Collection; Penalty for Violation, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows:

Sec. 10-3. Containers; placement for collection; penalty for violation.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Every owner or occupant of any private dwelling, trailer, apartment or business establishment shall have all
garbage drained and bagged for deposit and placed in a publicly owned container, unless otherwise
exempted from use of city collection service by the director of public works pursuant to section 10-2(3) and
(4). All yard waste shall be placed in special publicly owned yard waste containers for automated pickup,
except for leaves made available for a special fall leaf pickup on such schedule and in such manner as shall be
determined by the city.

Unless otherwise specified by the director of public works, publicly owned garbage and yard waste
containers shall be placed in a neat and orderly manner in the front of the premises at or near the curb line
so as to allow the most convenient collection. All privately owned garbage and refuse containers shall
likewise be placed in a neat and orderly manner in the front of the premises at or near the curb line or at the
rear of the premises or near the edge of an alley, as the case may be.

No publicly or privately owned garbage container, and no publicly owned yard waste container, shall be
placed prior to 6:00 p.m. on the day preceding collection and the same must be removed not later than 8:00
p.m. on the day of collection, or as otherwise directed by the director of public works.

No publicly or privately owned garbage container, and no publicly owned yard waste container, shall be
overfilled, which is defined as the contents of the container being in such a quantity as to result in the
container lid being open greater than forty-five degrees from full closure at the time of collection

In areas designated by the director of public works as one-sided collection areas, all publicly owned garbage
and yard waste containers shall be placed as provided for in subsection (b) of this section except that such
containers shall be placed at or near the same curb line on the same side of the street or alley as indicated in
the designation.

The director of public works shall have the authority to designate the proper placement for collection, if
other than as provided for in subsection (b) of this section, of publicly and privately owned garbage
containers and publicly owned yard waste containers for every private dwelling, trailer, apartment or

Item 6.

40




business establishment, provided that the owner or occupant is given at least 30 days' advance notice prior

to the effective date of the designation.

(g) A person who violates any provision of this section shall be deemed to have committed a municipal
infraction, and shall be subject to punishment as follows:

(1) For violation of subsection (a), (b), (e), or (f), a civil penalty as provided in section 1-9(a).

(2) For violation of subsection (c) or (d), a civil penalty in the amount of $15.00 for each occurrence.

(h) Violation of any provision of this section may result in the assessment of infraction points against the owner

of a dwelling unit subject to the Cedar Falls Minimum Rental-Housing Code, in addition to the penalty
specified herein.

(Code 2017, § 12-3; Ord. No. 2656, § 1, 5-27-2008; Ord. No. 2896, § 2, 3-6-2017; Ord. No. 2941, § 3, 6-3-2019)

Section 2. Subsection (g), Garbage and Refuse and Yard Waste Service

Charges, of Section 10-5, Service Charges—Established, of Article I, In General, of Chapter 10,

Garbage and Refuse, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is hereby

repealed in its entirety and a new Subsection (g), Garbage and Refuse and Yard Waste Service

Charges, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows:

Sec. 10-5. Service charges—Established.

[unchanged provisions omitted]

(8) Garbage and refuse and yard waste service charges.

Item 6.

Christmas tree tags purchased for disposal of trees for | $1.25/each
pick-up at curb
Appliances brought to the city transfer station $10.00/each
Cathode ray tube monitors (computer and television $7.50/each
monitors)
Automobile tire $2.50/each
With rim $5.00/each
Truck or tractor tire $6.50/each
With rim $9.00/each
Purchase of empty bags for sand at the city transfer $0.50/each
station
Yard waste containers (other than city-issued $0.75/each
containers) brought to the city transfer station
Garbage bag tags placed on top of cart at curb $1.25/each
Dumping of commercial or apartment dumpsters See subsection 10.5(f) for rate schedule
Three yard containers See subsection 10.5(f) for rate schedule
Solid waste disposal bags brought to the city transfer $0.75/each
station
Minimum tipping fees at the city transfer station:
Solid waste up to 260 pounds $7.00/dump
Yard waste up to 400 pounds $7.00/dump
Solid Waste / Demolition dumping at the city transfer | $65.00/ton
station
Yard waste $29.50/ton

41




Item 6.

Scale charge $3.00

Cart delivery; exchanging automated carts (this charge | $20.00
will be implemented if resident continues to change
sizes)

Leaf vacuum service $50.00

Additional yard waste container (no more than a total | $50.00
of two; non-refundable fee)

Commercial Cardboard Containers $10.00/dump
Commercial Bulk Recycling drop off $50.00/dump
Return Service Fee $15,00

[unchanged provisions omitted]

Section 3. Subsection (h), The Placing of or Failure to Remove Garbage or Yard Waste
Container Within Specified Time Limits, and Subsection (i), Asphalt Shingle Recycling, both of
Section 10-5, Service Charges—Established, of Article I, In General, of Chapter 10, Garbage
and Refuse, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, are hereby repealed in
their entirety, as follows:

Sec. 10-5. Service charges—Established.

[unchanged provisions omitted]

INTRODUCED: June 17, 2024

PASSED 15T CONSIDERATION: June 17, 2024

PASSED 2"° CONSIDERATION:

PASSED 3R° CONSIDERATION:

ADOPTED:

Daniel Laudick, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk

42




MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
City Hall, 220 Clay Street
June 17, 2024

The meeting of the Committee of the Whole met at City Hall at 5:16 p.m. on June 17, 2024, with
the following Committee persons in attendance: Mayor Daniel Laudick, Councilmembers Chris
Latta, Daryl Kruse, Aaron Hawbaker, Hannah Crisman, Kelly Dunn, and Gil Schultz. Dustin
Ganfield, absent. Staff members from various City Departments and members of the community
attended in person.

Committee of the Whole:

Mayor Laudick called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Committee of the
Whole Agenda, Parking Study Report. Fishbeck Consultant Jon Forster gave an overview of the
goals of the downtown parking study, input and data gathering from stakeholder interviews,
public forums, online parking survey and parking occupancy counts. Forster stated 1,460
respondents participated in the online survey and some key findings included: 69% characterize
finding a space is difficult, weekend evenings most difficult followed by events, 65% say two or
three blocks is a reasonable walking distance, 80% say more parking is needed and 52% say
parking on Main Street should be free. Forster reviewed the current parking demand, space
occupancy in the downtown core area, downtown opportunities and development, future parking
demand, managing the parking occupancy, current parking finances, parking supply and
demand, options to address future parking demand, and downtown momentum. Fishbeck
Consultant Joshua Rozeboom gave an overview of parking structures, advantages of parking
structures, parking structure risks, street level commercial and non-commercial space, and
occupied space above a parking structure. Forster reviewed parking structure costs which
included construction, operations, maintenance and debt, paid parking, map of potential paid
parking area, and rate structure. Forster gave an overview of the parking funding challenge,
paid parking without a structure, rates and operations in other cities, continual measurement
and management. Forster stated recommendations: keeping everything the same;
implementing paid parking without a structure; or implementing paid parking and a plan for a
new parking structure. Council members discussed raising fees on parking permits, revenue in
parking budget, cost per garage space, potential locations of a garage, safety concerns, paid
parking downtown, 50-foot parking structure residential use on top of the parking garage and
the potential for a public restroom. The council asked for information on how a parking structure
would affect our code for required parking when constructing a new building; could the ramp
spaces be used in lieu of a developer of a new building providing a specific number of spaces.
Council asked for the cost for 4-5 story parking garage with commercial on ground level and
residential on top, potential “leaping” over from one garage structure to another garage structure
(roadway between the two city blocks).

Meeting adjourned at 6:24 p.m.

Minutes by Shianne Bellinger, Administrative Assistant

Iltem 7.

43




From: Jason Droste < >

Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2024 10:43 PM

To: Danny Laudick <Danny.Laudick@cedarfalls.com>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Jason Droste HRC Resignation

You don't often get email from

Mayor Laudick,

With a heavy heart | am resigning for the Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission. | really enjoyed my
time on the commission. | learned a lot from my fellow commissioners. Commissioner Bock was an
excellent leader. As so often happens with boards and commissions, we faced some challenges. Some of
these challenges tested us all. Chair Bock kept the group together as a whole and kept the HRC's vision
and message focused. Her mentorship is invaluable. TW Ingham, as the new chair has taken the baton
from Sonja, and is doing a wonderful job! | look forward to the future with TW.

Thank you for this opportunity to serve Cedar Falls!

Sincerely,

Jason Droste

Item 8.

44



mailto:Danny.Laudick@cedarfalls.com

From: Brad Leeper <>

Sent: Thursday, June 13, 2024 9:35 AM

To: Danny Laudick <Danny.Laudick@cedarfalls.com>
Cc: Karen Howard <Karen.Howard@cedarfalls.com>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] P&Z appointment

Danny,

Great talking with you yesterday. | appreciate your vision for the city i have grown to love and
call home in Cedar Falls.

| have greatly enjoyed my time being on the planning and zoning commission. It hasn't been
easy but | have learned a lot and know that we have made a difference as a group. As i said, it
is time for me to move my focus to other things but am not giving up my passion for this city and
it's progressive development. my last day will be the July 10 commission meeting.

| want to give a bit of a shout out to Karen. She is someone i have come to respect greatly for
her vision, patience and leadership. She gets it and our city wouldn't be what it is without her
leadership.

If other opportunities come up to serve on broad issues of planning, vision and quality of life, i'd
be glad to serve.

Also, i think i have someone in our office who would provide a similar background as i do if you
are looking for a replacement. let me know.

Thanks and hope you both continue to reach out.
Best,

Brad Leeper, AIA

Item 8.

45



mailto:Danny.Laudick@cedarfalls.com
mailto:Karen.Howard@cedarfalls.com

Item 9.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES

POLICE OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613

319-273-8612

MEMORANDUM
To: Mayor Laudick and City Councilmembers
From: Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director
Mark Howard, Police Chief
Date: July 1, 2024
Re: Retail Alcohol License Applications

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no records that would
prohibit these licenses and recommend approval.

Name of Applicants:

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

9)
h)

Chuck E. Cheese's, 5911 University Avenue, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal.
Applebee's Neighborhood Grill & Bar, 6301 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal.
Carlos O'Kelly's Mexican Café, 6507 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal.
Cooper’s Taproom, 2002 College Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal.

Le Petit, 119 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal.

Montage, 222-224 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service — renewal.

Texas Roadhouse, 5715 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol - renewal.

Carlos O'Kelly's Mexican Café, 6507 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol — change in
ownership.

Jorgensen Plaza (Table 1912, Diamond Event Center and Gilmore’s Pub), 5307 Caraway Lane,
Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (July 25,
2024 and August 29, 2024)

46




Item 11.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Mayor Laudick and City Council Members
FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations
DATE: June 21, 2024

SUBJECT: FY2025 Health Trust Funding

Please find attached an agreement with Cedar Falls Community School District. The
agreement sets forth the requirements that must be met by the school district in order to
receive $32,891 for their “Inclusive Playground” project for FY2025. This project was
recommended for funding by the Cedar Falls Health Trust Fund Board and was part of

the FY2025 Budget.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

47




Item 11.

FY2025 Cedar Falls Health Trust Services Funding

AGREEMENT IN SUPPORT
OF CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of this day of , 2024, by and
between Cedar Falls Community School District (hereinafter “District”), and the City of Cedar Falls,
Black Hawk County, lowa (hereinafter "City").

WHEREAS, the Cedar Falls City Council adopted Resolution No0.23,036 on Jan. 17,
2023, wherein the City amended the Accounting Policies and Procedures and Purchasing
Manual, including updating Section 28 on Outside Entity Funding, which now is referred to as
CFD 3128 (“Finance Policies”); and

WHEREAS, the District is an agency that qualifies for funding from the City pursuant to the
Finance Policy as updated; and

WHEREAS, the District has proposed to the City its “Inclusive Playground” project whereby
the District will use City funds to ensure that all of the elementary playgrounds in Cedar Falls
contain opportunities for students with disabilities to safely play together with their nondisabled
peers, in order to benefit the City of Cedar Falls (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the District's Project is more fully explained in the District’s application filed
with the City; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Policy noted above allows certain funding for projects of this type
on certain terms and conditions, and subject to certain legal requirements as stated therein,
including execution of a formal agreement outlining the duties and responsibilities of the applicant
and the City; and

WHEREAS, the District and the City have reached agreement on the precise terms and
conditions under which the Project will be undertaken and the funding provided, and now desire to
reduce their agreement to writing.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT MUTUALLY COVENANTED AND AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1. Recipient status. The District affirms that it is a qualified recipient to receive funds
from City, as it is a private, non-profit corporation organized and existing under lowa law.

2. Recipient mission statement. The District has provided the City with its mission
statement and a detailed summary from an officer or board member specifying its use of the funds,
consistent with the public purpose definition of the Finance Policy approved by the City Council.

3. Recipient documentation. Prior to receiving funding, the District shall provide the
following documentation to City:

a. Proof of business entity status, including a copy of by-laws and articles of
incorporation if applicable and if requested;

48




Item 11.

b. Complete information on the source and amount of funding received from all
other sources, including but not limited to non-governmental agencies,
membership dues and fees, and private contributions if substantially different
than disclosed in the application;

c. Names and addresses of directors and/or officers if changed since date of
application;

d. Line item budget for current fiscal year if substantially different than disclosed
in the application;

4. Description of Project. In consideration for the funding provided to the District by
the City, the District use the funds for the Project which will benefit the general public.

5. Funding. The City agrees to provide funding in an amount not in excess of
$32,891.00 in order to support implementation of the Project. The Project Budget is established
as part of the Application. The District agrees to complete the Project even if actual expenditures
exceed the amount budgeted by the District for the Project.

6. Documentation Regarding Accounting of Expenditure of City Funds. The
District shall provide the City with a detailed interim accounting of the expenditure of City funds
and a written report outlining the District’s performance and accomplishments within the scope of
work outlined in its application, upon submitting Requests for Payment pursuant to Paragraph 7.

7. Request for Payment. All requests for payment or reimbursement shall be
submitted by the District to the City in accordance with a schedule to be established by the City,
consistent with the bi-monthly City Council bill approval cycle. All payments or reimbursements
are contingent upon receipt of the documentation required in Paragraph 6 above. City shall have
a period of up to thirty (30) days from date of receipt of each request for payment and all necessary
documentation, within which to make payment or reimbursement under this Agreement.

8. Availability of Funds. The funds requested for the Project will be available after
July 1, 2024, the beginning of the then current fiscal year.

9. Return of Funds. In the event the District does not use funds for the intended
purpose(s) or in the event the District does not comply with the reporting requirements of
Paragraph 6 above, the funds or any portion thereof shall be returned to the City prior to the end
of the then current fiscal year, which is June 30, 2025.

10. Limitation of funding. The parties hereby acknowledge that the City is not
committed or obligated to provide funds beyond the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and
that any future project or program requires a separate request and is subject to City Council
approval and execution of a separate written agreement.

11. Recipient Board. The Recipient Board, the Cedar Falls Community School District
Board of Directors, shall be charged with planning for the appropriate expenditure of City grant
funds in accordance with this Agreement.

49




Item 11.

12. Termination. Either party may terminate this contract at any time if:

a. The other party materially breaches the terms of this contract; provided that
the non-breaching party shall have given the breaching party written notice
of such breach and the breaching party shall have failed to cure the same
within (30) days after receipt of such notice;

b. There is the loss or departure of key personnel that would jeopardize both
the quality and time of performance or would make performance impractical
with respect to the budget contemplated for this contract, and a mutually
acceptable replacement cannot be found; or

C. Performance of any part of this contract by a party is prevented or delayed
by reason of Force Majeure and cannot be overcome by reasonable
diligence to the satisfaction of either party.

In addition, either party may terminate this contract for any reason with 60 days written notice to
the other party, as long as the City has not yet provided funding or the District reimburses all City
funding prior to termination.

In the event of termination, immediate written notice shall be given by the authorized official of the
terminating party to the other party which shall specify both the reason for and the effective date
of termination. Such notice shall be delivered by Certified Mail, return receipt requested, or in
person to the authorized official of the other party who executed this Agreement.

13. Liability. The City’s participation in the Project is limited to funding as provided in
this Agreement, and neither this Agreement nor the Project shall be considered a partnership or
joint venture. The City has asserted no control over the Project or over the District or its employees,
officers, directors, agents or volunteers with respect to the Project, and specifically disavows any
and all liability whatsoever for any acts or omissions related to or arising out of the Project

14. Legal Expenses. The District agrees that all legal expenses incurred by the City
in connection with the defense of any claim made or brought against the City that is directly related
to the District's performance, or the performance of The District’s employees, officers, directors,
agents or volunteers, under this Agreement shall be the responsibility of the District.

15. Terms of Agreement Control Over the Application. The parties acknowledge
that the provisions of this Agreement are controlling and shall define the duties, responsibilities
and conditions under which the Project shall be funded. Any and all provisions of the District's
Application describing the Project, which are inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement,
shall be ineffective. The District agrees that the Project shall be carried out without regard to a
participant’s race, color, creed, religion, national origin, sex, age, disability, sexual orientation,
gender identity, or any other legally protected characteristic.

16. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the Application to the extent not
inconsistent with the terms hereof, constitute the entire agreement between the parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof. There are no other oral or written promises or understandings
except as expressly provided herein. This Agreement may be amended only by a written
agreement signed by the parties hereto.

17. Term of Agreement. This Agreement covers the period from July 1, 2024 through
and including June 30, 2025.

50




Item 11.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have subscribed this Agreement effective as of the
date stated above.

Cedar Falls Comrr;unit School District
By: J/ ( A

“ i) koman,, Board Trendnd

City of Cedar Falls, lowa

By:

Daniel Laudick, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kim Kerr, CMC
City Clerk

4 51




RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT
IN SUPPORT OF CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT RELATIVE TO A
FY2025 HEALTH TRUST FUND GRANT

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, has considered
approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of Cedar Falls
Community School District relative to a FY2025 Budget Health Trust Fund Grant, and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, deems it in the best
interest of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, to approve and authorize executive of said

Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls,
lowa, that said Agreement is hereby approved and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby
authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa.

ADOPTED this 1%t day of July, 2024.

Daniel Laudick, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk

Item 11.

52




Item 12.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Mayor Laudick and City Council Members
FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations
DATE: June 17, 2024

SUBJECT: FY2025 Health Trust Funding

Please find attached an agreement with NAMI Black Hawk County. The agreement
sets forth the requirements that must be met by NAMI in order to receive $2,000 for
their “Services for People with Mental lliness” project for FY2025. This project was
recommended for funding by the Cedar Falls Health Trust Fund Board and was part of

the FY2025 Budget.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

53




Item 12.

FY2025 Cedar Falls Health Trust Services Funding

AGREEMENT IN SUPPORT
OF NAMI BLACK HAWK COUNTY

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of this__| ) day of ) JIU | 2024, by and
between National Alliance on Mental lliness Black Hawk County (hereinafter "NAMI") and the City

of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, lowa (hereinafter "City").

WHEREAS, the Cedar Falls City Council adopted Resolution No.23,036 on Jan. 17,
2023, wherein the City amended the Accounting Policies and Procedures and Purchasing
Manual, including updating Section 28 on Outside Entity Funding, which now is referred to as

CFD 3128 (“Finance Policies”); and

WHEREAS, NAMI is an agency that qualifies for funding from the City pursuant to the
Finance Policy as updated; and

WHEREAS, NAMI has proposed to the City its “Services for People with Mental lliness,
their Families and Partners” project whereby NAMI will use City funds to provide free classes with
the goal to reduce relapse and strengthen recovery in adults with mental illness as well as help
them, their families, and partners cope with the disease through education and support, in order

to benefit the City of Cedar Falls (the “Project’); and

WHEREAS, NAMI’s Project is more fully explained in NAMI's application filed with the City;
and

WHEREAS, the Finance Policy noted above allows certain funding for projects of this type
on certain terms and conditions, and subject to certain legal requirements as stated therein,
including execution of a formal agreement outlining the duties and responsibilities of the applicant

and the City; and

WHEREAS, NAMI| and the City have reached agreement on the precise terms and
conditions under which the Project will be undertaken and the funding provided, and now desire to

reduce their agreement to writing.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT MUTUALLY COVENANTED AND AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1. Recipient status. NAMI affirms that it is a qualified recipient to receive funds from
City, as it is a private, non-profit corporation organized and existing under lowa law.

2. Recipient_mission statement. NAMI has provided the City with its mission
statement and a detailed summary from an officer or board member specifying its use of the funds,
consistent with the public purpose definition of the Finance Policy approved by the City Council.

3. Recipient documentation. Prior to receiving funding, NAMI shall provide the
following documentation to City:

a. Proof of business entity status, including a copy of by-laws and articles of
incorporation if applicable and if requested;

54




Item 12.

b. Complete information on the source and amount of funding received from all
other sources, including but not limited to non-governmental agencies,
membership dues and fees, and private contributions if substantially different

than disclosed in the application;
c. Names and addresses of directors and/or officers if changed since date of

application;
d. Line item budget for current fiscal year if substantially different than disclosed

in the application;

4, Description of Project. In consideration for the funding provided to NAMI by the
City, NAMI shall use the funds for the Project which will benefit the general public.

S Funding. The City agrees to provide funding in an amount not in excess of
$2,000.00 in order to support implementation of the Project. The Project Budget is established as
part of the Application. NAMI agrees to complete the Project even if actual expenditures exceed

the amount budgeted by NAMI for the Project.

6. Documentation Regarding Accounting of Expenditure of City Funds. NAMI
shall provide the City with a detailed interim accounting of the expenditure of City funds and a
written report outlining NAMI's performance and accomplishments within the scope of work
outlined in its application, upon submitting Requests for Payment pursuant to Paragraph 7.

7. Request for Payment. All requests for payment or reimbursement shall be
submitted by NAMI to the City in accordance with a schedule to be established by the City,
consistent with the bi-monthly City Council bill approval cycle. All payments or reimbursements
are contingent upon receipt of the documentation required in Paragraph 6 above. City shall have
a period of up to thirty (30) days from date of receipt of each request for payment and all necessary
documentation, within which to make payment or reimbursement under this Agreement.

8. Availability of Funds. The funds requested for the Project will be available after
July 1, 2024, the beginning of the then current fiscal year.

9. Return of Funds. In the event NAMI does not use funds for the intended purpose(s)
or in the event NAMI does not comply with the reporting requirements of Paragraph 6 above, the
funds or any portion thereof shall be returned to the City prior to the end of the then current fiscal

year, which is June 30, 2025.

10. Limitation of funding. The parties hereby acknowledge that the City is not
committed or obligated to provide funds beyond the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and

that any future project or program requires a separate request and is subject to City Council
approval and execution of a separate written agreement.

11. Recipient Board. The Recipient Board, NAMI Black Hawk County Board of
Directors, shall be charged with planning for the appropriate expenditure of City grant funds in

accordance with this Agreement.

55




Item 12.

12. Termination. Either party may terminate this contract at any time if:

a. The other party materially breaches the terms of this contract; provided that
the non-breaching party shall have given the breaching party written notice
of such breach and the breaching party shall have failed to cure the same
within (30) days after receipt of such notice;

b. There is the loss or departure of key personnel that would jeopardize both
the quality and time of performance or would make performance impractical
with respect to the budget contemplated for this contract, and a mutually

acceptable replacement cannot be found; or
c. Performance of any part of this contract by a party is prevented or delayed
by reason of Force Majeure and cannot be overcome by reasonable

diligence to the satisfaction of either party.

In addition, either party may terminate this contract for any reason with 60 days written notice to
the other party, as long as the City has not yet provided funding or NAMI reimburses all City funding

prior to termination.

In the event of termination, immediate written notice shall be given by the authorized official of the
terminating party to the other party which shall specify both the reason for and the effective date
of termination. Such notice shall be delivered by Certified Mail, return receipt requested, or in

person to the authorized official of the other party who executed this Agreement.

13. Liability. The City’s participation in the Project is limited to funding as provided in
this Agreement, and neither this Agreement nor the Project shall be considered a partnership or
joint venture. The City has asserted no control over the Project or over NAMI or its employees,
officers, directors, agents or volunteers with respect to the Project, and specifically disavows any
and all liability whatsoever for any acts or omissions related to or arising out of the Project

14. Legal Expenses. The NAMI agrees that all legal expenses incurred by the City in
connection with the defense of any claim made or brought against the City that is directly related
to NAMI’s performance, or the performance of NAMI's employees, officers, directors, agents or
volunteers, under this Agreement shall be the responsibility of NAMI.

15. Terms of Agreement Control Over the Application. The parties acknowledge
that the provisions of this Agreement are controlling and shall define the duties, responsibilities
and conditions under which the Project shall be funded. Any and all provisions of NAMI's
Application describing the Project, which are inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement,
shall be ineffective. NAMI agrees that the Project shall be carried out without regard to a
participant’s race, color, creed, religion, national origin, sex, age, disability, sexual orientation,
gender identity, or any other legally protected characteristic.

16. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the Application to the extent not
inconsistent with the terms hereof, constitute the entire agreement between the parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof. There are no other oral or written promises or understandings
except as expressly provided herein. This Agreement may be amended only by a written

agreement signed by the parties hereto.

17. Term of Agreement. This Agreement covers the period from July 1, 2024 through
and including June 30, 2025.

56




Item 12.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have subscribed this Agreement effective as of the

date stated above.
NAMI Black Hawk County
By: CQ"P\/VK/

City of Cedar Falls, lowa

By:

Daniel Laudick, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kim Kerr, CMC
City Clerk

57




RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT
IN SUPPORT OF NATIONAL ALLIANCE ON MENTAL ILLNESS (NAMI) BLACK
HAWK COUNTY RELATIVE TO A FY2025 HEALTH TRUST FUND GRANT

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, has considered
approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of NAMI Black Hawk
County relative to a FY2025 Budget Health Trust Fund Grant, and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, deems it in the best
interest of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, to approve and authorize executive of said

Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls,
lowa, that said Agreement is hereby approved and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby
authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa.

ADOPTED this 1%t day of July, 2024.

Daniel Laudick, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk

Item 12.

58




Item 13.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Mayor Laudick and City Council Members
FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations
DATE: June 24, 2024

SUBJECT: FY2025 Health Trust Funding

Please find attached an agreement with Family YMCA of Black Hawk County. The
agreement sets forth the requirements that must be met by the YMCA in order to
receive $5,000 for their “Livestrong at the YMCA” project for FY2025. This project was
recommended for funding by the Cedar Falls Health Trust Fund Board and was part of

the FY2025 Budget.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

59




Item 13.

FY2025 Cedar Falls Health Trust Services Funding

AGREEMENT IN SUPPORT
OF Family YMCA OF BLACK HAWK COUNTY

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of this E [ day of “{[ IV , 2024, by and
between Family YMCA of Black Hawk County (hereinafter "YMCA™), and the City of Cedar Falls,

Black Hawk County, lowa (hereinafter "City").

WHEREAS, the Cedar Falls City Council adopted Resolution No.23,036 on Jan. 17,
2023, wherein the City amended the Accounting Policies and Procedures and Purchasing
Manual, including updating Section 28 on Outside Entity Funding, which now is referred to as

CFD 3128 (“Finance Policies”); and

WHEREAS, YMCA is an agency that qualifies for funding from the City pursuant to the
Finance Policy as updated; and

WHEREAS, YMCA has proposed to the City its “Livestrong at the YMCA” project whereby
YMCA will use City funds to help cancer survivors reclaim their physical and emotional health,
while giving them a sense of community that will encourage them and support them along the way,
in order to benefit the City of Cedar Falls (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, YMCA'’s Project is more fully explained in YMCA's application filed with the
City; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Policy noted above allows certain funding for projects of this type
on certain terms and conditions, and subject to certain legal requirements as stated therein,
including execution of a formal agreement outlining the duties and responsibilities of the applicant

and the City; and

WHEREAS, YMCA and the City have reached agreement on the precise terms and
conditions under which the Project will be undertaken and the funding provided, and now desire to

reduce their agreement to writing.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT MUTUALLY COVENANTED AND AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1. Recipient status. YMCA affirms that it is a qualified recipient to receive funds from
City, as it is a private, non-profit corporation organized and existing under lowa law.

2. Recipient_mission statement. YMCA has provided the City with its mission
statement and a detailed summary from an officer or board member specifying its use of the funds,
consistent with the public purpose definition of the Finance Policy approved by the City Council.

3. Recipient documentation. Prior to receiving funding, YMCA shall provide the
following documentation to City:

a. Proof of business entity status, including a copy of by-laws and articles of
incorporation if applicable and if requested;

60




Item 13.

b. Complete information on the source and amount of funding received from all
other sources, including but not limited to non-governmental agencies,
membership dues and fees, and private contributions if substantially different
than disclosed in the application;

c. Names and addresses of directors and/or officers if changed since date of
application;

d. Line item budget for current fiscal year if substantially different than disclosed
in the application;

4. Description of Project. In consideration for the funding provided to YMCA by the
City, YMCA shall use the funds for the Project which will benefit the general public.

5. Funding. The City agrees to provide funding in an amount not in excess of
$5,000.00 in order to support implementation of the Project. The Project Budget is established as
part of the Application. YMCA agrees to complete the Project even if actual expenditures exceed

the amount budgeted by YMCA for the Project.

6. Documentation Regarding Accounting of Expenditure of City Funds. YMCA

shall provide the City with a detailed interim accounting of the expenditure of City funds and a
written report outlining YMCA'’s performance and accomplishments within the scope of work
outlined in its application, upon submitting Requests for Payment pursuant to Paragraph 7.

7. Request for Payment. All requests for payment or reimbursement shall be
submitted by YMCA to the City in accordance with a schedule to be established by the City,
consistent with the bi-monthly City Council bill approval cycle. All payments or reimbursements
are contingent upon receipt of the documentation required in Paragraph 6 above. City shall have
a period of up to thirty (30) days from date of receipt of each request for payment and all necessary
documentation, within which to make payment or reimbursement under this Agreement.

8. Availability of Funds. The funds requested for the Project will be available after
July 1, 2024, the beginning of the then current fiscal year.

9. Return of Funds. In the event YMCA does not use funds for the intended
purpose(s) or in the event YMCA does not comply with the reporting requirements of Paragraph 6
above, the funds or any portion thereof shall be returned to the City prior to the end of the then

current fiscal year, which is June 30, 2025.

10. Limitation of funding. The parties hereby acknowledge that the City is not
committed or obligated to provide funds beyond the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and

that any future project or program requires a separate request and is subject to City Council
approval and execution of a separate written agreement.

11. Recipient Board. The Recipient Board, YMCA Black Hawk County Board of
Directors, shall be charged with planning for the appropriate expenditure of City grant funds in

accordance with this Agreement.

61




Item 13.

12. Termination. Either party may terminate this contract at any time if:

a. The other party materially breaches the terms of this contract; provided that
the non-breaching party shall have given the breaching party written notice
of such breach and the breaching party shall have failed to cure the same
within (30) days after receipt of such notice;

b. There is the loss or departure of key personnel that would jeopardize both
the quality and time of performance or would make performance impractical
with respect to the budget contemplated for this contract, and a mutually
acceptable replacement cannot be found; or

(e} Performance of any part of this contract by a party is prevented or delayed
by reason of Force Majeure and cannot be overcome by reasonable
diligence to the satisfaction of either party.

In addition, either party may terminate this contract for any reason with 60 days written notice to
the other party, as long as the City has not yet provided funding or YMCA reimburses all City

funding prior to termination.

In the event of termination, immediate written notice shall be given by the authorized official of the
terminating party to the other party which shall specify both the reason for and the effective date
of termination. Such notice shall be delivered by Certified Mail, return receipt requested, or in
person to the authorized official of the other party who executed this Agreement.

13. Liability. The City’s participation in the Project is limited to funding as provided in
this Agreement, and neither this Agreement nor the Project shall be considered a partnership or
joint venture. The City has asserted no control over the Project or over YMCA or its employees,
officers, directors, agents or volunteers with respect to the Project, and specifically disavows any
and all liability whatsoever for any acts or omissions related to or arising out of the Project

14. Legal Expenses. The YMCA agrees that all legal expenses incurred by the City in
connection with the defense of any claim made or brought against the City that is directly related
to YMCA’s performance, or the performance of YMCA'’s employees, officers, directors, agents or
volunteers, under this Agreement shall be the responsibility of YMCA.

15. Terms of Agreement Control Over the Application. The parties acknowledge
that the provisions of this Agreement are controlling and shall define the duties, responsibilities
and conditions under which the Project shall be funded. Any and all provisions of YMCA's
Application describing the Project, which are inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement,
shall be ineffective. YMCA agrees that the Project shall be carried out without regard to a
participant's race, color, creed, religion, national origin, sex, age, disability, sexual orientation,
gender identity, or any other legally protected characteristic.

16. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the Application to the extent not
inconsistent with the terms hereof, constitute the entire agreement between the parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof. There are no other oral or written promises or understandings
except as expressly provided herein. This Agreement may be amended only by a written

agreement signed by the parties hereto.

17. Term of Agreement. This Agreement covers the period from July 1, 2024 through
and including June 30, 2025.

62




Item 13.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have subscribed this Agreement effective as of the

date stated above.

ATTEST:

Kim Kerr, CMC
City Clerk

City of Cedar Falls, lowa

By:

Daniel Laudick, Mayor

63




RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT
IN SUPPORT OF FAMILY YMCA OF BLACK HAWK COUNTY RELATIVE TO A
FY2025 HEALTH TRUST FUND GRANT

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, has considered
approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Family YMCA of
Black Hawk County relative to a FY2025 Budget Health Trust Fund Grant, and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, deems it in the best
interest of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, to approve and authorize executive of said

Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls,
lowa, that said Agreement is hereby approved and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby
authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa.

ADOPTED this 15t day of July, 2024.

Daniel Laudick, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk

Item 13.

64




Item 14.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

MEMORANDUM

Human Resources Division

Mayor Laudick and City Council Members
FROM:  Bailey Schindel, Human Resources Manager
DATE: July 1, 2024

SUBJECT: FY25 Employee Climate Survey Agreement

Attached for your approval is an agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and the
University of Northern lowa (UNI) for the FY25 Employee Climate Survey. An employee
survey was last conducted in 2022 with UNI assisting as the consultant on the project.
The 2024 survey will be available to all employees, and the 2022 survey results will be
utilized as a benchmark to compare with the anticipated 2024 results.

If you have questions regarding the attached, feel free to contact me at 319-268-5531.

Attachment

65




Item 14.

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
UNIVERSITY OF NORTHERN IOWA

CITY EMPLOYEE CLIMATE SURVEY

This Agreement is by and between _University of Northern lowa__ (“Contractor”) and the City of Cedar Falls, lowa
(“City”), and is to be effective on the date last signed by the Contractor or the City below.

1.0. Contractor's Services

1.1. Contractor's services shall consist only of the those services and/or products provided or supplied by
Contractor as defined in this Agreement and as listed on Exhibit “A” aftached. (“Services” or “Scope of Services”)

1.2. Contractor shall not commence or perform any work outside the Scope of Services unless and until
authorized in writing by the City. No changes to the Scope of Services shall be valid unless agreed to by both the
Contractor and the City in writing. Any work performed or expenses incurred by the Contractor shall be conclusively
presumed to be part of the Scope of Services unless a written change order covering such work, and the cost of such
work, has been agreed to in advance. The project fee and total value of this Agreement shall not exceed the amount
of $13,415. If Exhibit “A” includes provisions for contingent services, such services shall not be performed until
written authorization is given by the City.

1.3. Contractor shall assign qualified and experienced personnel to perform the Services, and Contractor hereby
warrants to the City that Contractor has sufficient experience and financial resources to complete the Services
required by this Agreement. Where the Scope of Services identifies particular personnel who shall perform the
Services, such personnel shall remain assigned to provide the Services throughout the term of this Agreement,
unless otherwise approved in writing by the City. In the event that such particular personnel must be replaced,
Contractor agrees to replace such particular personnel with persons of equivalent or better qualifications, as
approved by the City.

1.4. Contractor shall perform the Services in a timely manner and in accordance with any schedule set forth in
Exhibit "A”. The Contractor and the City agree that time is of the essence with respect to Contractor's performance
under this Agreement.

1.5. Contractor warrants that its fulfillment of this Agreement will not infringe on or misappropriate the rights of any
third party, and that the Contractor has the complete right and full authority to convey ownership of the Services fo
the City. Contractor shall obtain all required governmental and third-party licenses, approvals and permits for the
provision of Services, at Contractor's cost.

1.6. The person signing this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor represents and warrants that the person has
full and sufficient authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor.

2.0. Compensation

21. All bids and prices shall be shown in U.S. Dollars. All prices must remain firm for the duration of this
Agreement.

22 After inspection (if applicable) and acceptance by the City of Services, City shall pay Contractor in
accordance with the payment terms set forth in Exhibit “B”. The maximum amount of all payments for Services shall
be the amount set forth in Exhibit “B”, unless additional Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, in which
case the maximum amount of all payments shall be adjusted accordingly.

66




23. Following acceptance of Services by the City, payment shall be made to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of a proper invoice. The invoice shall include, at a minimum. The name and address of the Contractor, the
invoice number, the date services were performed or goods were shipped, a general description of the services or
goods, total amount to be paid, any discounts or credits, and the net amount to be paid. The invoice shall be mailed
or emailed to the authorized representative of the City listed below, at the address listed below.

24, Expenses shall not be reimbursed to the Contractor unless specifically described in Exhibit “B”. Contractor
shall invoice the City upon project completion within 60 days of the end of the agreement.

2.5. If services in addition to the Scope of Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, Contractor must
provide a separate invoice for such additional services before payment will be made.

2.6. If the City fails to make any payment when due to the Contractor, the Contractor may charge the City interest
on the unpaid balance at the rate of 5% per annum until paid. In addition, Contractor may, after giving seven (7) days
written notice to the City, suspend services under this Agreement until such unpaid balance is paid in full.

27. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the City may withhold payment to Contractor for
faulty Services, or if the City is advised of liens or other claims against any Services, including products.

3.0. Taxes.

3.1. The City is exempt from all federal, State of lowa, and other states’ taxes on the purchase of products and
services used by the City within the State of lowa. The City shall provide tax exemption certification as required.

3.2. Any charges for taxes from which the City is exempt will be deducted from invoices before payment is made.

4.0. Ownership and Use of Documents

41. All Services to be provided under this Agreement, and any invention, improvement, discovery, or innovation
(whether or not patentable) made, conceived or actually reduced to practice by Contractor in the performance of the
Scope of Services in this Agreement will be owned exclusively by the City, including all proprietary and intellectual
property rights. To the extent not automatically vested in the City, Contractor hereby assigns to the City all right, titie
and interest in and to the Services, including, without limitation, copyright, patent and trade secret rights. Upon the
City’'s request, Contractor shall execute any additional documents necessary for the City to perfect such ownership
rights.

4.2. Notwithstanding Section 4.1, Contractor retains ownership of its pre-existing and proprietary materials and
other intellectual property that may be incorporated into the Services.

4.3. Copies of City furnished data that may be relied upon by Contractor are limited to the printed copies (also
known as hard copies) that are delivered to the Contractor. Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or
of other formats that are furnished by the City to the Contractor are only for the convenience of the Contractor. Any
conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the Contractor’s sole risk.

44. During the term of this Agreement and following completion or termination of the Agreement, the Contractor
and any authorized Subcontractors shall maintain all accounting records and other documentation generated in
providing Services under this Agreement. The City or its designee shall be allowed to have access to such
information for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying during normal business hours for a period of five (5)
years after the final payment by the City, termination of this Agreement, or resolution of all matters under this
Agreement, whichever date is latest. No additional compensation shall be paid to Contractor for such retention or
inspection by the City or designee.

5.0. Term and Termination.
5.1. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date and end on _12/31/2024 _ unless earlier

terminated under the terms of this Agreement.

Item 14.

67




Item 14.

5.2 The City may terminate this Agreement at any time for its convenience by giving written notice to the
Contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date of the termination, at least thirty (30) calendar days
before the effective date of termination. In that event, all finished or unfinished Services, reports and materials
prepared or furnished by the Contractor shall, at the option of the City, become the City's property. If the Agreement
is terminated by the City as provided herein, the Contractor shall be paid for all Services which have been authorized,
approved and provided up to the effective date of termination. The City will not be subject to any termination fees
from the Contractor.

5.3. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon seven (7) calendar days written notice in the event that the
other party fails to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fautt of the party
initiating the termination.

6.0. Warranties.

6.1. Contractor represents and warrants that Services shall be performed in a manner consistent with the
standard of care of other professional service providers in a similar industry and application.

6.2. Contractor represents and warrants that products delivered as part of the Scope of Services, including each
component, shall be free of defects and shall conform to the quality standards of the applicable industry and shall
meet in all respects the requirements of the Scope of Services. If any defect or sign of deterioration is identified by
the City within one year after delivery which is not due to the acts or omissions of the City, Contractor shall, within 15
days after notification by the City, at Contractor's expense, repair, adjust or replace such items to the complete
satisfaction of the City.

6.3. Contractor shall be responsible for the quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of all
Services under this Agreement. Contractor shall promptly and without charge, provide all corrective work necessary
as a result of Contractor's acts, errors or omissions with respect to the quality and accuracy of Contractor's Services.

6.4. Contractor shall be responsible for any and all damages to property or persons as a result of Contractor's
acts, errors or omissions in performing the Services under this Agreement, and for any losses or costs to repair or
remedy any Services undertaken by the City as a result of any such acts, errors or omissions.

6.5. Contractor’'s obligations shall exist without regard to, and shall not be construed to be waived by, the
availability or unavailability of any insurance, either by the City or by the Contractor. None of the provisions of this
Agreement shall be construed as a limitation on the City's right to seek recovery of damages it suffers as a result of

Contractor’s fault or breach.

7.0. Warranties — Intellectual Property.

7.1. Contractor represents and warrants that the Services produced or provided to the City do not infringe upon
any copyright, trademark, trade name, trade dress patent, statutory, common law or any other right of any person or
entity.

7.2. Contractor represents and warrants that the Services, and the City's use of the same, and the exercise by the
City of the rights granted by this Agreement, shall not infringe upon any other work or violate the rights of publicity or
privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against, any person or entity.

7.3. Contractor represents and warrants that it is the owner of or otherwise has the right to use and distribute the
Services contemplated by this Agreement.

8.0. Disputes.

8.1. Should any dispute arise with respect to this Agreement, the parties agree to act immediately to resolve such
dispute. Time is of the essence in the resolution of disputes.

68




8.2. Contractor agrees that, the existence of a dispute notwithstanding, it will continue without delay to carry out
all of its responsibilities under this Agreement that are not affected by the dispute and the City shall continue to make
payment for all Services that are performed in conformance with this Agreement. Should the Contractor fail to
continue to perform its responsibilities regarding all non-disputed Services, without delay, any additional costs
incurred by the City or the Contractor as a result of such failure to proceed shall be borne by the Contractor.

8.3. Should any dispute between the parties remain unresolved, the parties mutually agree to engage in
mediation prior to the filing of suit by either party. The cost of mediation shall be divided equally between the parties
except that each party shall be responsible for that party’s own expenses and attorney fees associated with
mediation. The City shall not engage in arbitration of any dispute.

9.0. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.

9.1. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor (for purposes of this Section 9.0, includes employees,
subcontractors, agents and others working on behalf of Contractor under this Agreement) agrees to defend (for all
non-professional claims), indemnify, and hold harmless the City (for purposes of this Section 9.0 includes elected and
appointed officials, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City) against any and all claims, demands, suits
or loss, including any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages, which may be asserted,
claimed or recovered against or from the City, including, but not limited to, damages arising by reason of personal
injury, including bodily injury or death, and property damage, which arises out of or is in any way connected or
associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City under this Agreement, to the extent
caused by or arising out of the errors, omissions, negligent or intentionai acts of the Contractor.

9.2. Contractor's duty of indemnification and to hold harmless includes, but is not limited to, Contractor's breach
or alleged breach of the warranties found in Sections 6.0 and 7.0 above, and shall survive the termination of this
Agreement. Such duty also includes damage, loss or injury to the City or City property.

9.3. Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for loss, expense, damages or injuries which may result to
the Contractor by reason of or in connection with the work and/or services provided by Contractor under this
Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of the errors, omissions, negligent or intentional acts of the
Contractor.

94. It is specifically agreed between the parties that this Agreement is not intended to create in the public or any
member of the public third party beneficiary status or to authorize anyone not a party to this Agreement to maintain a
suit for personal injuries or property damage.

10.0. Insurance.

Contractor shall at all times during the performance of this Agreement maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit “C”
unless this insurance requirement is waived by the Ci\t!in tr{s Section.

g ~
Insurance requirement waived: _éﬂA/lA\SS(/MVE)\

- (Signature and title of
authorized City employee or officer) ~

The City may at any time during the term of this Agreement require proof of such insurance.

11.0. Compliance with Laws and Regulations.

11.1. Contractor certifies that in performing this Agreement it will comply with all applicable provisions of federal,
state and local laws, ordinances, rules, licenses and regulations and shall make reasonable efforts to ensure that its
employees, agents, subcontractors and others working on behalf of the Contractor under this Agreement do the
same.

11.2. Contractor is responsible for determining which products are considered to be hazardous chemicals under
applicable standards and to provide the most current Safety Data Sheet (“SDS”) with the initial shipment of such
chemicals. Failure by Contractor to do so may be considered by the City to be delivery of a defective product and its

4

Item 14.

69




Item 14.

delivery may be refused. Itis also the Contractor's responsibility to provide to the City any updated or revised SDS
as it becomes available for any such hazardous chemicals sold and delivered to the City.

12.0. Independent Contractor.

Both parties shall act in their individual capacities in the performance of this Agreement and not as agents,
employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another. The employees or agents of one party shall not be
deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the other for any purpose whatsoever.

13.0. Non-Collusion.

13.1. Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has employed any person to solicit or
procure this Agreement, nor will the Contractor make any payment or agreement for payment of any compensation in
connection with the solicitation or procurement of this Agreement.

13.2. Contractor agrees that there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding expressed or implied,
contemplating any division of compensation for Services provided under this Agreement, or in the participation in
such Services, directly or indirectly, by any person or entity, except as provided in this Agreement.

13.3. Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has either directly or indirectly entered
into any agreement, arrangement or understanding to collude or otherwise take any action in restraint of free
competitive procurement in connection with this Agreement.

14.0. Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity.

14.1. Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, sex,
color, creed, national origin, marital or familial status, religion, age, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity,
genetic information or veteran status, or any other classification protected by federal, state, or local law, except where
age or sex is an essential bona fide occupational requirement, or where disability is a bona fide occupational

disqualification.

14.2. Contractor shall inform all subcontractors and agents performing under this Agreement of this
nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirement and shall take reasonable steps to ensure their compliance with

the same.

15.0. No Conflict of Interest,

Contractor represents, warrants and covenants that no relationship exists or will exist during the term of this
Agreement that is a conflict of interest under lowa law. No employee, officer or agent of the Contractor shall
participate in the procurement or performance of this Agreement if a conflict of interest exists as to such person.
Should a conflict of interest arise during the term of this Agreement for Contractor or any employee, officer or agent of
Contractor, Contractor shall immediately notify the City, in which case this Agreement may be terminated and any
excess costs incurred by the City due to such termination shall be paid by Contractor or deducted from any sums yet
due to Contractor.

16.0. Force Majeure.

16.1. Force majeure shall be any of the following events: acts of God or the public enemy; compliance with any
order, rule, regulation, decree, or request of any governmental authority or agency or person purporting to act as
such; acts of war, public disorder, rebellion, terrorism, or sabotage; floods, hurricanes, or other storms; strikes or
labor disputes; or any other cause, whether or not of the class or kind specifically named or referred to in this
Agreement which is not within the reasonable control of the party affected. A delay in or failure of performance by
either party shall not constitute a default in performance nor be the basis for, or give rise to, any claim for damages, if
and to the extent such delay or failure is caused by force majeure.

70




16.2. The party who is prevented from performing by force majeure shall be obligated, within a period not to
exceed fourteen (14) calendar days after the occurrence or detection of any such event, to provide notice to the other
party setting forth in reasonable detail the nature thereof and the anticipated extent of the delay, and shall remedy
such cause as soon as reasonably possible, as mutually agreed between the parties.

16.3. If a remedy to an event of force majeure cannot be agreed upon within a reasonable amount of time, this
Agreement may be terminated by either party.

17.0. Assignment.

No rights under this Agreement may be assigned or transferred by Contractor without the prior written consent of the
City. The benefits of this Agreement may inure to Contractor's assigns, transferees, or successors in interest if
approved by the City in writing in advance, and if such assignee, transferees or successors agree in writing to be
bound by the terms of this Agreement.

18.0. Governing Law.

18.1. This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of
lowa, regardless of choice of law principles.

18.2, Venue for any dispute under this Agreement shall be the District Court in and for Black Hawk County, lowa.

19.0. Discrepancy.

In the event that there are any discrepancies or differences between any terms or conditions of the Contractor’s bid or
quote and this Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail, even if the Contractor’s bid or quote is incorporated into this
Agreement.

20.0 Public Record.

20.1.  This Agreement as well as Contractor's bid or quote and all documents submitted with any such bid or quote
shall become public documents subject to lowa Code Chapter 22, the lowa Open Records Law. By submitting the
bid or quote or any document to the City in connection with such bid or quote, the submitting party recognizes this
and waives any claim against the City, its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and agents working on
behalf of the City, relating to the release of any bid or document submitted.

20.2. Each submitting party shall hold the City and its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and
agents working on behalf of the City, harmless from any claims arising from the release of any document or
information made available to the City related to or arising from the bidding or quoting process.

20.3. Notwithstanding Sections 20.1 and 20.2, protection from disclosure may apply to those elements of any
submittal that may be a trade secret, or confidential or proprietary information. Should the submitting party wish to
designate submittals as such, they must be clearly and prominently marked. The City shall make no determination as
to whether or not such documents are protected from disclosure under lowa Code Chapter 22. Rather, the City shall
endeavor to notify the submitter of any request for such information and the submitter shall be solely responsible for
asserting exemption from disclosure by obtaining a court order. As long as the City makes a good faith effort to notify
the submitter of a request for such information, the City and the City’s elected and appointed officers, the City’s
employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, shall not be liable for any damages resulting from such
disclosure, whether such disclosure is deemed required by law, by an order of court or administrative agency, or
occurs through inadvertence, mistake, or negligence.

21.0. Debarment.

21.1. Contractor hereby certifies, pursuant to 48 CFR Part 9, that neither it nor its principals are presently
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
Agreement by any federal agency.

Item 14.

71




21.2. Contractor further certifies that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in any contracts with the City or with the State of lowa.

22.0 Confidentiality of Shared Information.

No information shared between Contractor and the City in the performance of this Agreement shall be deemed
confidential unless clearly designated as such in writing by the party seeking confidentiality at the time of sharing. If
designated as confidential the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information except as necessary
for performance under this Agreement, unless or until written authorization for disclosure is given by the designating
party, or as required by law, or by an order of a court or administrative agency. In the event of a dispute over the
confidentiality of shared information, the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of the designated information
until the issue of confidentiality is resolved. The duty to maintain the confidentiality of such information shall survive

the termination of this Agreement.

23.0. Entire Agreement.

231. This Agreement, and Exhibits, which are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, contains the
entire agreement and understanding by and between the parties with respect to the subject matter, and no
representations, promises, agreements, or understandings, written or verbal, not contained in this Agreement, shall

be of any force or effect.

23.2. No change, modification or waiver of this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless the same is in writing
and signed by the party against whom such change, modification or waiver is sought to be enforced.

24.0. Additional Terms.

25.0. Notices.

Any notice required to be given under this Agreement and any authorization required to be provided shall be given or
provided to:

City: Contractor:

Name: Bailey Schindel Name: __ Tolif Hunt

Title: Human Resources Manager Title: Director of Research & Sponsored Programs
Address: 220 Clay St Address: _ 213 East Bartlett

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Telephone: _319-268-5531 Telephone: __319-273-3025
Email: bailey.schindel@cedarfalls.com Email: __tolif.hunt@uni.edu

Item 14.

72




Item 14.

In Witness Whereof, the City and the Contractor have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the last date listed
below.

CONTRACTOR

(Name of Contractor) University of Northern lowa

. Digitally signed by Tolif R. Hunt
By: TOI If R' H u nt Date: 2024.06.20 14:05:11 -05'00"

Its: _Director of Research & Sponsored Programs Date:

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

By:

Daniel Laudick, Mayor

Attest: DNate:

Kim Kerr, MMC, City Clerk

73




Item 14.

Exhibit A

Project Objective

To assist the City of Cedar Falls in developing and administering a benchmark employee climate study.
This assessment will be designed to monitor employee feedback relative to key business areas in cluding,
but not limited to, job satisfaction, communication, department restructuring, and leadership. it will also
be used to continue monitoring satisfaction levels, but the primary goal will be to provide the City of
Cedar Falls with information targeted at improving and fostering the relationship between leadership
and employees, as well as, between employee groups.

Project Design

survey Development, Design, and Distribution

Strategic Marketing Services (SMS5) will work in collaboration with the City of Cedar Faills to update the
previously used self-completion survey instrument from the 2022 study to gather information as
described in the project objective. Additionally, SMS will be responsible for producing an invitation to
employees explaining the purpose of the survey and participation logistics. It will also describe our role
as a third-party research administrator to raise awareness of the steps the City of Cedar Falls has taken
to ensure confidentiality for employees.

In collaboration with the City of Cedar Falls, SMS will update the common core of guestions that all
employees will answer, as well as, add new questions to reflect changing information needs.

Once the survey and invitation content has been approved, SMS will program the survey for online
completion, as well as create a print survey layout. SMS will coordinate the distribution process
including both online email invitations and physical survey parcels. SMS will work with the City of Cedar
Falls to identify which survey distribution method is best for employees based on their access to
technology.

Data Collection, Entry, and Analysis

SMS will be accountable for all tasks associated with data collection, data entry, analysis and reporting.
This will include the following:

¢ (Online survey programming and testing

®*  Print survey layout, printing and parce! distribution

®  Process incoming mailed responses, including data entry

e Ciean data and run appropriate frequencies, cross-tabulations and other statistical testing fo compare
emplicyee groups and other appropriate respondent segments

Specifically, the City of Cedar Falls agrees to provide/complete the following:

* Collaborate with SMS to update survey topics and questions, and provide final approval
e  Provide SMS with an electronic file of current City employee contact informaticn

A summary research & analysis report will be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls at project completion
with complete data tabulations appended to allow for in-depth study. All pertinent survey data and
statistical analyses will be summarized in an easy-to-digest format in the body of the report including
comparisons between appropriate employee segments.

74




Project Duration

5MS estimates a total project duration of approximately 11 weeks. Anticipated project milestones are
detailed below assuming timely review/approval of instrument and invitation. Upen receiving
authorization for the project, SM3 will assign a start date for the project.

Item 14.

Exhibit A cont.

¢ Anticipated Start Date: Summer 2024

=}

D0 QaQo

Weeks 1-2:
Weeks 3-4:
Weeks 5-7:
Weeks 8-9:
Weeks 10-11:

Project Fee

SMS’s proposed fee for conducting the project is $21,415. As a participant of SMS’s MarketSolve
program (from the Regent’s innovation Fund), the City of Cedar Falls will receive a fee reduction of
$8,000 towards the cost of the project. UNI's Office of Research and Sponsored Programs (RSP) will
invoice the City of Cedar Falls for $13,415 at project conclusion (satisfactory acceptance of Final Report).

Survey question development

Online survey programming/testing; Paper survey typesetting & printing
Survey administration f Data collection

Data cleaning and analysis

Report generation

Exhibit B

These prices are valid for a period of 60 days following submission of this proposal.

10

75




DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

R

Item 15.

MEMORANDUM

TO:  Mayor Laudick and City Council Members
FROM:  Bailey Schindel, Human Resources Manager

DATE: July 1, 2024

SUBJECT: Amendment to City’s Health Insurance Benefits and Summary Plan
Document & Revision of related personnel policy 2251: Insurance Benefits

Attached for your approval is a resolution for an amendment to the City’s health insurance
benefits and summary plan document. Accompanying the resolution is a redline of the
revisions to the group health summary plan document expanding coverage continuation
of existing health coverage to an eligible surviving spouse and each eligible surviving
child of a peace officer or firefighter who is an active service member at the time of death,
to which an accidental death benefit is payable pursuant to lowa Code Section 411.6(9)

Also attached is the personnel policy 2251: Insurance Benefits, which has been revised
to reflect the expanded health coverage continuation explained above, and clarify the
current retiree coverage practice.

Lastly, attached for your approval is a resolution for an amendment to the City’s health
insurance benefits and summary plan document. Accompanying the resolution is a
redline of the revisions to the group health summary plan document which extends the
continuation of existing health coverage, including the coverage of any applicable
dependents, including spouse, through the end of the month following the month in which
the death of an active employee occurred.

If you have questions regarding the attached, please contact me at 268-5531 or Jennifer
Rodenbeck at 268-5108.

Attachments

76




RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDMENT TO THE CITY’S
HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFITS AND SUMMARY PLAN DOCUMENT

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, has considered
approving and adopting an amendment to the City’s health insurance benefits as

reflected in the City’s Summary Plan Document, and

WHEREAS, said amendment would expand continuation of existing health
coverage to an eligible surviving spouse and each eligible surviving child of a peace
officer or firefighter who is an active service member at the time of death, to which an

accidental death benefit is payable pursuant to lowa Code Section 411.6(9), and

WHEREAS, the amendment would be effective retroactive to February 1, 2024,

and

WHEREAS, the amendment has been reviewed by Wellmark and Wellmark has
agreed to the addition of the benefit retroactive to February 1, 2024, and its inclusion in

our stop loss coverage, and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, deems it in the best
interest of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, to approve and adopt said amendment to the

City’s health insurance summary plan document.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls,
lowa, that the amendment to the City’s health insurance benefits and summary plan

document are hereby approved and adopted.

ADOPTED this 1%t day of July, 2024.

Daniel Laudick, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk

Item 15.

77




Coverage Changes and Termination

and may have to be resubmitted once
coverage is reinstated.

If you fail to make a monthly payment
before the end of the grace period for that
month, you will lose all rights to COBRA
coverage under the plan.

Assistance With Questions. Questions
concerning the plan or your COBRA rights
shouldbeaddressedtothecontactor
contacts identified below. For more
information about COBRA, the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act (HIPAA), and other laws affecting group
health plans, contact the nearest Regional
Office of the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (HHS) or visit the HHS
website at www.hhs.gov. Addresses and
phone numbers of Regional HHS Officesare
alsoavailable through HHS’s website.

Notification of Changes. In order to
protect your family’s rights, you should keep
WEX Health, Inc., informed of any changes
in the addresses of family members. You
should also keep a copy, for your records, of
any notices sent by your employer or group
Sponsor.

Plan Contact Information. For
additional information about you and your
dependents’ rights and obligations under
the plan and under federal law, you should
contact your employer or group sponsor, the
plan administrator. You may obtain
information about COBRA coverage on
request from:

WEX Health, Inc.

PO Box 2079

Omaha, NE 68103-2079
The contact information for the plan may
change from time to time. The most recent
information will be included in the most
recent plan documents (if you are not sure
whether this is the most recent plan
document, you may request the most recent
one from the plan administrator or your
employer or group sponsor).

Item 15.

Continuation for Public Group

Iowa Code Sections 509A.7 and 509A.13
may apply if you are an employee of the
State, an Iowa school district, or other
public entity supported by public funds. If
this law applies to you, you may be entitled
to continue participation in this medical
benefits plan when you retire.

Coverage Continuation or
Reenrollment Upon Duty-Related
Death of Eligible Peace Officer or
Fire Fighter-in-the Line of Duty-
Pursuant to Iowa Code Section 509A.13C, a
governing body, county board of
supervisors, or city council that sponsors a
health care coverage plan for its employees
under Iowa Code chapter 509A-shall
permits continuation of existing coverage
or reenrollment in previously existing
health coverage for the surviving spouse
and each surviving child of an eligible peace
officer or fire fighter. An “eligible peace
officer or firefighter” means a peace officer,
as defined in Iowa Code Section 801.4, or a
fire fighter, as defined in Iowa Code Section
411.1, to which a line of duty death benefit is
payable pursuant to Iowa Code Section
97A.6, Subsection 16, Iowa Code Section
97B.52, Subsection 2,-e¥ Iowa Code Section
411.6, Subsection 15, or, for such peace officer
or firefighter who is an active service member
at the time of death, to which an accidental
death benefit is payable pursuant to Iowa
Code Section 411.6(9). A governing body, a
county board of supervisors, or a city council
shall also permit continuation of existing
coverage for the surviving spouse and each
surviving child of an eligible peace officer or
fire fighter until such time as the
determination is made as to whether to
provide a line of duty benefit or accidental
death benefit.

Iowa Code Section 509A.13C applies
retroactively to allow reenrollment in
previously existing health coverage for the
surviving spouse and each surviving child of
an eligible peace officer or fire fighter who
died in the line of duty or who is eligible for
an accidental death benefit on or after
January 1, 1985. Coverage benefits will be
provided for services on or after the date of
reenrollment.

78



http://www.hhs.gov/

CFD 2251.243: Personnel Policy — Insurance Benefits CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 o

Item 16.

CFD 2251: Personnel Policy — Insurance Benefits
Approved Janruary-6,2020July 1, 2024 by the Cedar Falls City Council
: | Filed et I lls G "

POLICY:

It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls to provide eligible employees with certain insurance benefits.
For specific details of benefits, employees are referred to the insurance plan documents. Provisions
in plan documents take precedence over any statements in this policy.

PROCEDURES:
1. Health Insurance.

A. Health insurance is available to all full-time employees and their dependents, including
spouse, (as defined by plan documents).

B. The City may pay a portion of the premium and the employee will pay, via payroll deduction
authorized by the employee in writing, the remainder of the premium. If, for any pay period,
there are insufficient wages due and payable to the employee to cover the premium to be
withheld, the employee must submit to the City, not later than the employees’ normal payday,
the amount of premium owed by the employee. If the premiums for such health insurance
are increased, or decreased, the City reserves the right to alter the share of premium cost to
be paid by employees.

C. Prescription drug insurance is offered to employees covered by the health insurance plan.

D. Health and prescription drug deductibles and co-insurance payments for dependents will be
paid by the employee.

E. Employee’s health and prescription drug deductibles and co-insurance payments may be
reimbursed pursuant to a 8105 Plan and as determined by City Council and the collective
bargaining process.

2. Life Insurance.

A. The City will purchase life insurance for eligible full-time employees which, in the event of the
death of an employee while employed by the City, will provide a benefit of one times the
employee’s annual base wage.

B. The City will pay the premium for eligible employees; however, the City reserves the right to
alter or discontinue this benefit.

C. Collective bargaining agreements govern this benefit for employees covered by the
bargaining unit.

3. Accidental Death and Dismemberment Insurance.

79




CFD 2251.243: Personnel Policy — Insurance Benefits CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 o

Item 16.

The City will purchase Accidental Death Insurance and Accidental Dismemberment
Insurance for eligible full-time employees.

. The City will pay the premium for eligible employees; however, the City reserves the right to

alter or discontinue this benefit.

4. Long Term Disability Insurance.

A.

B.

The City will purchase long term disability insurance for eligible full-time employees which, in
the event the employee is disabled from working, and otherwise qualifies for benefits, will
pay a monthly benefit of a percentage of their monthly earnings subject to a maximum
monthly benefit as provided for in the plan document.

The City will pay the premium for eligible employees; however, the City reserves the right to
alter or discontinue this benefit.

5. Dental Insurance.

A.

Dental insurance is available to all full-time employee